
 

1 

 

Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
City Council Chambers | 50 Natoma Street, Folsom CA  95630 
February 25, 2020 
6:30 PM 

Welcome to Your City Council Meeting 

We welcome your interest and involvement in the city’s legislative process. This agenda includes 

information about topics coming before the City Council and the action recommended by city staff. You 

can read about each topic in the staff reports, which are available on the city website and in the Office 

of the City Clerk. The City Clerk is also available to answer any questions you have about City Council 

meeting procedures. 

Participation 

If you would like to provide comments to the City Council, please: 

 Fill out a blue speaker request form, located at the back table. 

 Submit the form to the City Clerk before the item begins. 

 When it’s your turn, the City Clerk will call your name and invite you to the podium. 

 Speakers have three minutes, unless the presiding officer (usually the mayor) changes that 

time. 

Reasonable Accommodations 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or cfreemantle@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must 

be made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

How to Watch 

The City of Folsom provides three ways to watch a City Council meeting: 

In Person Online On TV 

 

  
City Council meetings take place at 

City Hall, 50 Natoma Street 
Watch the livestream and replay past 

meetings on the city website, 
www.folsom.ca.us 

Watch live and replays of meetings on 
Sac Metro Cable TV, Channel 14 

 
More information about City Council meetings is available at the end of this agenda 

 
 

 
Page 1

mailto:cfreemantle@folsom.ca.us
http://www.folsom.ca.us/


 

2 

 

 

 

City Council Regular Meeting 
 

Folsom City Council Chambers 
50 Natoma Street, Folsom, CA 

 

 www.folsom.ca.us   

Tuesday, February 25, 2020 6:30 PM 
 

Sarah Aquino, Mayor 

 

Ernie Sheldon, Vice Mayor Roger Gaylord, Council Member 
Kerri Howell, Council Member Mike Kozlowski, Council Member 

 
Vice Mayor Ernie Sheldon will participate in this meeting via teleconference from the following 

location: 
Room 5228 

Kaiser Sacramento Medical Center 
2025 Morse Avenue 

Sacramento, CA  95825 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL: 

Council Members:     Sheldon, Gaylord, Howell, Kozlowski, Aquino 

The City Council has adopted a policy that no new item will begin after 10:30 p.m.  Therefore, if you are 
here for an item that has not been heard by 10:30 p.m., you may leave, as the item will be continued to 
a future Council Meeting. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

AGENDA UPDATE 

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR: 

Members of the public are entitled to address the City Council concerning any item within the Folsom 
City Council's subject matter jurisdiction.  Public comments are limited to no more than three 
minutes.  Except for certain specific exceptions, the City Council is prohibited from discussing or taking 
action on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. 

SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS: 

Page 2

http://www.folsom.ca.us/


 

3 

1. Presentation by Folsom High School Students Regarding the Computer Science Pathway 
Program New Drone Unit 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be approved by one 
motion.  City Council Members may pull an item for discussion. 

2. Approval of the February 11, 2020 Special/Regular Meeting Minutes 

3. Ordinance No. 1300 - An Uncodified Ordinance Adopting Prima Facie Speed Limits on 
Greenback Lane, Prairie City Road and Riley Street (Second Reading and Adoption) 

4. Resolution No. 10391 - A Resolution Authorizing Adoption of a Memorandum of Understanding 
Between the City of Folsom and the City of Folsom Fire Department Middle Management 
Employees (CFFDMME) for the Period of January 1, 2020 Through December 31, 2022 
 

5. Resolution No. 10392 - A Resolution Rescinding Resolution No. 10307 Authorizing the City 
Manager to Execute a Contract with Allstar Fire Equipment and Bauer Compressors to Purchase 
Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus and Related Equipment to Maintain Compliance with the 
Department of Transportation and National Fire Protection Association and Meet the 
Requirements of OSHA 29 CFR 1910 

6. Resolution No. 10393 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. 1 
to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-21 19-028) with Black & Veatch Corporation for the Design 
Services for the Water Treatment Plant Actiflo-Polymer Capacity Project, Hereinafter Referred to 
as the Water Treatment Plant Pre-Treatment System Improvement Project 

7. Resolution No. 10394 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Amend Existing Contracts 
for Building Plan Check and Inspection Services with Shums Coda Associates, 4Leaf Inc., and 
Interwest Consulting Group to Increase the Aggregate Contract Amount and Appropriation of 
Funds (173-21 15-058, 173-21 15-057, 173-21 15-064) 

8. Resolution No. 10395 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Consultant 
Services Agreement with TJKM Transportation Consultants for the Local Road Safety Plan and 
Appropriation of Measure A Funds 

OLD BUSINESS: 

9. Budget Overview and Forecast for FY 2020-21 

CITY MANAGER REPORTS: 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

NOTICE:  Members of the public are entitled to directly address the City Council concerning any item 

that is described in the notice of this meeting, before or during consideration of that item.  If you wish to 

address Council on an issue, which is on this agenda, please complete a blue speaker request card, and 

deliver it to a staff member at the table on the left side of the Council Chambers prior to discussion of the 

item.  When your name is called, stand to be recognized by the Mayor and then proceed to the podium.  If 

you wish to address the City Council on any other item of interest to the public, when the Mayor asks if 

Page 3



 

4 

there is any “Business from the Floor,” follow the same procedure described above.  Please limit your 

comments to three minutes or less. 

 

NOTICE REGARDING CHALLENGES TO DECISIONS:   Pursuant to all applicable laws and regulations, 

including without limitation, California Government Code Section 65009 and or California Public 

Resources Code Section 21177, if you wish to challenge in court any of the above decisions (regarding 

planning, zoning and/or environmental decisions), you may be limited to raising only those issues you or 

someone else raised at the public hearing(s) described in this notice/agenda, or in written 

correspondence delivered to the City at, or prior to, the public hearing. 

As presiding officer, the Mayor has the authority to preserve order at all City Council meetings, to remove 

or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disorderly conduct, or for making personal, 

impertinent, or slanderous remarks, using profanity, or becoming boisterous, threatening or personally 

abusive while addressing said Council, and to enforce the rules of the Council. 

PERSONS INTERESTED IN PROPOSING AN ITEM FOR THE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SHOULD 

CONTACT A MEMBER OF THE CITY COUNCIL. 

The meeting of the Folsom City Council is being telecast on Metro Cable TV, Channel 14, the 

Government Affairs Channel, and will be shown in its entirety on the Friday and Saturday following the 

meeting, both at 9 a.m.  The City does not control scheduling of this telecast and persons interested in 

watching the televised meeting should confirm this schedule with Metro Cable TV, Channel 14. The City 

of Folsom provides live and archived webcasts of regular City Council meetings.  The webcasts can be 

found on the online services page of the City's website www.folsom.ca.us. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or cfreemantle@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must be 

made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to the City Council regarding any item on this agenda 

will be made available at the City Clerk’s Counter at City Hall located at 50 Natoma Street, Folsom, 

California and at the Folsom Public Library located at 411 Stafford Street, Folsom, California during 

normal business hours. 

  

Page 4

http://www.folsom.ca.us/
mailto:cfreemantle@folsom.ca.us


MEETING DATE: 

AGENDA SECTION: 

SUBJECT: 

FROM: 

Folsom City Council 
Staff Re ort 

2/25/2020 

Scheduled Presentations 

Presentation by Folsom High School Students Regarding the 
Computer Science Pathway Program New Drone Unit 

City Clerk's Department 

BACKGROUND/ ISSUE 

Students from the Folsom High School computer science pathway program will make a 
presentation regarding their new drone unit. 

Submitted, 

1 
Page 5

Item No. 1.



 

 

 

 
This page is intentionally left blank. 

Page 6

Item No. 1.



CALL TO ORDER 

City Council Special Meeting 

MINUTES 

Tuesday, February 11, 2020 5:30 PM 

Book 75 Page 117 
Folsom City Council 

February 11, 2020 

The special City Council meeting was called to order at 5:30 p.m. in City Council Chambers, 50 
Natoma Street, Folsom, California, with Mayor Sarah Aquino presiding. 

ROLL CALL: 

Council Members Present: Mike Kozlowski, Council Member 
Roger Gaylord, Council Member 

Sarah Aquino, Mayor 

Council Members Absent: Kerri Howell, Council Member (arrived during Closed Session) 
Ernie Sheldon, Vice Mayor 

Staff Present: City Manager Elaine Andersen 
City Attorney Steve Wang 
City Clerk Christa Freemantle 

ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION FOR THE FOLLOWING PURPOSES: 

1. Conference with Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation - Significant Exposure to Litigation 
Pursuant to Government Code section 54956.9(d)(2): 1 Potential Case 

Motion by Council Member Mike Kozlowski, second by Council Member Roger Gaylord 
to adjourn to closed session for the above referenced item. Motion carried with the 
following roll call vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

RECONVENE 

Council Member(s): Kozlowski, Gaylord, Aquino 
Council Member(s): None 
Council Member(s): Howell, Sheldon 
Council Member(s): None 

City Attorney Steve Wang announced that there was no final action to report. 

DRAFT - Not Official Until Approved try the Ci!J Coundl Page 7

Item No. 2.



ADJOURNMENT 

Book 75 Page 118 
Folsom City Council 

February 11, 2020 

There being no further business to come before the Folsom City Council, the meeting was 
adjourned at 6:30 p.m. 

PREPARED AND SUBMITTED BY: 

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk 

ATTEST: 

Sarah Aquino, Mayor 

DRAFT -Not 0.ffifta! Until Approved l?J the Ciry Council Page 8

Item No. 2.



CALL TO ORDER 

City Council Regular Meeting 

MINUTES 

Tuesday, February 11, 2020 6:30 PM 

Book 75 Page 119 
Folsom City Council 

February 11, 2020 

The regular City Council meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m. in City Council Chambers, 50 
Natoma Street, Folsom, California, with Mayor Sarah Aquino presiding. 

ROLL CALL: 

Council Members Present: 

Council Members Absent: 

Staff Present: 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Mike Kozlowski, Council Member 
Roger Gaylord, Council Member 
Kerri Howell, Council Member 
Sarah Aquino, Mayor 

Ernie Sheldon, Vice Mayor 

City Manager Elaine Andersen 
Assistant City Manager Jim Francis 
City Attorney Steve Wang 
City Clerk Christa Freemantle 
Finance Director Stacey Tamagni 
Community Development Director Pam Johns 
Public Works Director Dave Nugen 
Environmental and Water Resources Director Marcus Yasutake 
Engineering Manager Mark Rackovan 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 

AGENDA UPDATE 

City Clerk Christa Freemantle advised that item 3 will be continued to a future meeting. 

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR: 

None 

DRAFT - Not Ojjidal Until Approved 1?J the City Council Page 9

Item No. 2.



SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS: 

Book 75 Page 120 
Folsom City Council 

February 11, 2020 

1. Resolution of Commendation Honoring the Folsom National Charity League for their 
Community Service 

Mayor Sarah Aquino presented the Resolution of Commendation. 

2. Resolution of Commendation Honoring the Folsom Concert Association for Receiving the 
2019 Folsom Arts Achievement Award 

Mayor Sarah Aquino presented the Resolution of Commendation. 

3. Presentation Regarding Regional Housing Needs Assessment Schedule/Housing 
Element Update - Planned Process and Schedule for the Housing Element Update 

(Item 3 was continued to a future meeting.) 

4. City Manager's Financial Report Including CAFR Findings for Fiscal Year 2019 and the 
Fiscal Year 2019-20 Second Quarter Financial Report 

Finance Director Stacey Tamagni made a presentation and responded to questions from the 
City Council. Environmental and Water Resources Director Marcus Yasutake and Public Works 
Director Dave Nugen responded to additional questions. 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be approved by one 
motion. City Council Members may pull an item for discussion. 

5. Approval of the January 28, 2020 Special/Regular Meeting Minutes 

6. Resolution No. 10386 - A Resolution Authorizing the Donation of Surplus Railroad Rolling 
Stock to the Placerville and Sacramento Valley Railroad 

7. Resolution No. 10387 - A Resolution Accepting a Grant from the California Department of 
Transportation for the Local Road Safety Plan 

8. Resolution No. 10388 - A Resolution to Maintain Existing Speed Limits on Greenback 
Lane, Prairie City Road and Riley Street 

9. Resolution No. 10389 - A Resolution Accepting the Grant Award from the Sacramento 
Area Council of Governments (SACOG) 2019 State of Good Repair Planning and Project 
Development Grant Funding Program for the City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan 

10. Resolution No. 10390 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an 
Agreement with Black & Veatch Corporation for Professional Services for the Risk and 
Resilience Assessment and Emergency Response Plan and Appropriation of Funds 

Motion by Council Member Kerri Howell, second by Council Member Roger Gaylord 
to approve the Consent Calendar. Motion carried with the following roll call vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 

Council Member(s): Kozlowski, Gaylord, Howell, Aquino 
Council Member(s): None 
Council Member(s): Sheldon 

DRAFT -Not Q_ffedal Until Approved l:ry the Ci!J Council Page 10

Item No. 2.



ABSTAIN: Council Member(s): None 

PUBLIC HEARING: 

Book 75 Page 121 
Folsom City Council 

February 11 , 2020 

11. Ordinance No. 1300 - An Uncodified Ordinance Adopting Prima Facie Speed Limits on 
Greenback Lane, Prairie City Road and Riley Street (Introduction and First Reading) 

Engineering Manager Mark Rackovan made a presentation and responded to questions from 
the City Council. 

Mayor Sarah Aquino opened the public hearing; hearing no speakers, the public hearing was 
closed. 

Motion by Council Member Mike Kozlowski, second by Council Member Kerri Howell to 
introduce Ordinance No. 1300. Motion carried with the following roll call vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Council Member(s): Kozlowski, Gaylord, Howell, Aquino 
Council Member(s): None 
Council Member(s): Sheldon 
Council Member(s): None 

CITY MANAGER REPORTS 

City Manager Elaine Andersen spoke of the passing of former City Council Member Stan Gisler. 
She spoke of Vice Mayor Ernie Sheldon's recovery from surgery, upcoming road construction, 
accessory dwelling unit design workshop, the new ballot drop box and vote center, and the Fire 
Department CERT training program. 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Council Member Roger Gaylord spoke of high school students' fundraiser effort and mobile City 
Council hours. 

Council Member Mike Kozlowski spoke of his visit with SACOG to the San Diego area and, 
state transportation funding. 

Council Member Kerri Howell spoke of STA meetings, RT meetings, Sacramento Placerville 
JPA meetings; she congratulated Twin Lakes Food Bank on their new box truck and urged 
everyone to drive carefully. 

Mayor Sarah Aquino spoke of the mobile office hours and LAFCo meeting. 

DRAFT - Not Offitial Until Approved l?J the City Coumil Page 11

Item No. 2.



ADJOURNMENT 

Book 75 Page 122 
Folsom City Council 

February 11, 2020 

There being no further business to come before the Folsom City Council, the meeting was 
adjourned at 7:16 p.m. 

PREPARED AND SUBMITTED BY: 

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk 

ATTEST: 

Sarah Aquino, Mayor 

DRAFT -Not Official Until Approved l?Ji the Ci!J Council Page 12

Item No. 2.



T 

l·' r(l LS(.) 1\1 

MEETING DATE: 

AGENDA SECTION: 

SUBJECT: 

FROM: 

Folsom City Council 
StaffRe ort 

2/25/2020 

Consent Calendar 

Ordinance No. 1300 -An Uncodified Ordinance Adopting Prima 
Facie Speed Limits on Greenback Lane, Prairie City Road and 
Riley Street (Second Reading and Adoption) 

Public Works Department 

RECOMMENDATION I CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

The Public Works Department recommends that the City Council adopt Ordinance No. 1300, 
an Uncodified Ordinance Adopting Prima Facie Speed Limits on Greenback Lane, Prairie City 
Road and Riley Street (Second Reading and Adoption). Ordinance No. 1300 was introduced 
to City Council for first reading on February 11, 2020. 

BACKGROUND/ ISSUE 

California state law requires that local agencies establish speed limits on public streets based 
upon an Engineering and Traffic Study for Speed Zoning (ETS). The procedure for conducting 
such a study is defined in both the California Vehicle Code (CVC) and in the Manual of 
Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD). Whenever a new roadway is opened to traffic, 
or when traffic conditions have significantly changed on an existing roadway, then an ETS 
must be conducted by the local agency. If the ETS concludes that a speed limit higher than 
the state minimum of 25 miles per hour (MPH) but less than the state maximum of 65 MPH is 
recommended, the speed limit must be adopted by City Council by ordinance, following a 
public hearing. 

POLICY/ RULE 

Section 10.08.030 of the Folsom Municipal Code states that speed limits shall be established 
by an Engineering and Traffic Study and adopted by ordinance of the City Council. 

1 Page 13

Item No. 3.



ANALYSIS 

Speed limits are set to establish a uniform speed that allows traffic to safely traverse a given 
road segment. The underlying theory is that a proper speed limit will improve traffic flow by 
reducing conflicts between vehicles traveling at greatly differing speeds. Artificially low limits 
can create safety problems (i.e., rear-end collisions, tailgating); while artificially high limits 
can be unsafe under normal roadway and environmental conditions. If a proper speed limit is 
posted, those motorists that significantly exceed the posted limit are clearly unsafe compared 
to the general traffic flow and can be cited. Further, an ETS allows speed limits to be enforced 
with radar. 

Speed surveys are necessary to determine speed limits in excess of the minimum speed limit 
of 25 MPH but less than the state maximum limit of either 55 or 65 MPH, depending on the 
roadway's functional classification. Certain roadways or sections of roadways have "prima 
facie" limits associated with them. A "prima facie" speed is one that does not require a radar 
survey, as long as the road segment in question meets specific requirements. Some examples 
of "prima facie" limits are as follows: 

1. 25 MPH on residential streets that are less than 40 feet wide, not more than one-half 
mile between traffic control devices, and only one lane of traffic per direction. 

2. 25 MPH in business districts, as defined by the California Vehicle Code. 

3. 25 MPH when passing a senior care facility. 

4. 25 MPH when passing a children's play area during times when children are typically 
present (usually dawn to dusk). 

5. 25 MPH when passing a school while children are present, when the school is not 
separated from the roadway by a fence. When the school is fenced, then the 25 MPH 
limit only applies when children are going to or coming from school, if the roadway is 
used by school age pedestrians to access the campus. 

6. 15 MPH in alleys 

On roadways that do not meet these criteria, an ETS must be performed to determine the proper 
prima facie speed. An ETS evaluates existing roadway geometric conditions, collision history, 
and the land uses adjacent to a given road segment. A radar survey is conducted to determine 
the 85th-percentile speed (the speed that is not exceeded by 85 percent of vehicles surveyed), 
the average speed, and the 10 MPH pace (a 10 MPH range of speeds in which the majority of 
vehicles were traveling). The nearest 5 MPH increment to the 85th-percentile speed is typically 
deemed the appropriate speed limit, unless other conditions are present that, in the opinion of 
the traffic engineer, justify further reduction; in which case the engineer may cite a one-time, 
downward zoning of an additional five miles per hour. 

2 
Page 14

Item No. 3.



The Public Works Department conducts speed surveys on a road by road basis, conducting 
several speed surveys along a given roadway wherever there are logical segments based on the 
road geometry and adjacent land use. The item before the Council at this time focuses on 
portions of three major roadways: 

1. Greenback Lane, Madison Ave. to Folsom-Auburn Rd. (reduction from 50 MPH to 45 
MPH) 

2. Prairie City Road, Highway 50 to Iron Point Road (reduction from 50 MPH to 45 MPH) 

3. Riley Street, Rainbow Bridge to East Bidwell Street (reduction from 35 MPH to 30 
MPH) 

The results of the speed surveys conducted for these roadways are attached for your 
information. All other speed limits along the subject roadways are not affected by this 
ordinance and are addressed by another item on this agenda in which staff recommends all 
other speed limits along the three roadways remain unchanged. 

The Traffic Safety Committee reviewed this item at their October 24, 2019 meeting and voted 
unanimously to support the recommended speed limits. A copy of the Action Summary from 
that meeting is attached. 

This is the second reading and adoption of the ordinance. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

There is no financial impact. 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

This action is exempt from environmental review under the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15301. 

ATTACHMENTS 

Submitted, 

1. Ordinance No. 1300-An Uncodified Ordinance Adopting Prima Facie Speed 
Limits on Greenback Lane, Prairie City Road and Riley Street (Second Reading 
and Adoption) 

2. Action Summary of the October 24, 2019 Traffic Safety Committee Meeting 

irector 

3 
Page 15

Item No. 3.



Attachment 1 

Ordinance No. 1300 

Page 16

Item No. 3.



ORDINANCE NO. 1300 

AN UNCODIFIED ORDINANCE ADOPTING PRIMA FACIE SPEED LIMITS ON 
GREENBACK LANE, PRAIRIE CITY ROAD AND RILEY STREET 

The City Council of the City of Folsom does hereby ordain as follows: 

SECTION 1 PURPOSE 

A. State law requires that local agencies establish speed limits on public streets within their 
jurisdictions using criteria defined in the California Vehicle Code; and 

B. The previous adoption of speed limits on roadways in the City of Folsom occurred in 
2010;and 

C. The Public Works Department has conducted valid Engineering and Traffic Studies for 
speed zoning to determine prima facie speeds on Greenback Lane, Prairie City Road and 
Riley Street; and 

D. The proposed speed limits were reviewed and approved by the Traffic Safety Committee 
on October 24, 2019; and 

E. Notice of hearing has been given in the form and in the manner required by State law and 
the Folsom Municipal Code. 

SECTION 2 DESIGNATION OF PRIMA F ACIE SPEED LIMITS 

The Prima Facie speed limits on Greenback Lane, Prairie City Road and Riley Street, as shown 
under the "Recommended" column in Exhibit A attached to this Ordinance, are hereby adopted 
by the City Council. 

SECTION 3 SEVERABILITY 

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase in this Ordinance or any part 
thereof is for any reason held to be unconstitutional, invalid, or ineffective by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the 
remaining portions of this Ordinance or any part thereof. The City Council declares that it would 
have passed each section irrespective of the fact that any one or more section, subsection, 
sentence, clause, or phrase be declared unconstitutional, invalid, or ineffective. 

SECTION 4 EFFECTIVE DATE 

This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days from and after its passage and 
adoption, provided it is published in full or in summary within twenty (20) days after its adoption 
in a newspaper of general circulation in the City. 

Ordinance No. 1300 
Page I of3 

Page 17

Item No. 3.



This ordinance was introduced, and the title thereof read at the regular meeting of the 
City Council on February 11, 2020 and the second reading occurred at the regular meeting of the 
City Council on February 25, 2020. 

On a motion by Council Member ______ seconded by Council Member 
, the foregoing ordinance was passed and adopted by the City Council of the City of Folsom, 
State of California, this 25th day of February 2020, by the following roll-call vote: 

AYES: Council Member(s): 
NOES: Council Member(s): 
ABSENT: Council Member(s): 
ABSTAIN: Council Member(s): 

ATTEST: 

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK 

Ordinance No. 1300 
Page 2 of3 

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR 

Page 18

Item No. 3.



# Street 

52 Greenback Lane 

53 Greenback Lane 

71 Prairie City Road 

73 Riley Street 

74 Riley Street 

Ordinance No. 1300 
Page 3 of3 

Exhibit A 

Survey Limits 

Madison Ave to American River Canyon Dr 

American River Canyon Dr to Folsom-Auburn Rd 

Highway 50 to Iron Point Rd 

Rainbow Bridge to Leidesdorff St 

Leidesdorff St to East Bidwell St 

Speed (mph) 

so 46 

so 44 

so 45 

35 23 

35 36 

45 

45 

45 

30 

30 

Changes to 
Existing Speed 

-5 

-5 

-5 

-5 

-5 

Page 19

Item No. 3.



Attachment 2 

Action Summary of the October 24, 2019 
Traffic Safety Committee Meeting 

Page 20

Item No. 3.



City of Folsom 
TRAFFIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 

ACTION SUMMARY 
4:00 p.m., Thursday, October 24, 2019 

Public Works Conference Room 

1. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER at 4:02 p.m. by Chair Pew 

2. ROLL CALL: 
Present: Newman, Pew, Rackovan, Rodriguez, Baade, Soulsby 
Absent: Washburn 

3. APPROVE ACTION SUMMARY 
Action Summary of the September 26, 2019 meeting were approved with no 

rev1s10ns. 

4. BUSINESS FROM FLOOR/GOOD OF THE ORDER 
Rebecca Bolin, inquired about a possible traffic data collection device mounted at 

the entrance to her neighborhood, and the process for obtaining information regarding 
calls for service received by Folsom PD. 

5. ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

Neighborhood Issues 
a. Willard/Chan Stop Sign Request: Moved by Baade, seconded by Rackovan to 

conduct a full study of the Willard corridor between Prairie City Road and 
Iron Point Road to evaluate three intersections for stop signs and/or 
crosswalks and to report back to the Committee; motion passed unanimously. 

Other Business: None 
b. Speed Limit Adoption: East Natoma Street, Empire Ranch Road, Folsom

Auburn Road, Greenback Lane, Oak Avenue Parkway, Prairie City Road, 
Riley Street: Moved by Rackovan, seconded by Rodriguez to accept the 
speed limit recommendations of the consulting engineer and submit the 
surveys to City Council for final adoption; motion passed unanimously. 

Project Review: None 

6. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS None. 

7. ADJOURNMENT at 4:29 p.m. 

Action Summary.Oct.19 
Page 21

Item No. 3.



 

 

 

 
This page is intentionally left blank. 

Page 22

Item No. 3.



Folsom City Council 
Staff Re art 

------=- -_-

ca 
-=---- -

COUNCIL DATE: 2/25/2020 

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar 

SUBJECT: Resolution No.10391- A Resolution Authorizing Adoption of a 
Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Folsom and 
the City of Folsom Fire Department Middle Management 
Employees (CFFDMME) for the period of January 1, 2020 
through December 31, 2022 

FROM: Human Resources Department 

RECOMMENDATION I CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

The Human Resources Director recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution 
No. 10391- A Resolution Authorizing Adoption of a Memorandum of Understanding 
between the City of Folsom and the City of Folsom Fire Department Middle Management 
Employees for the period from January 1, 2020 thru December 31, 2022. 

BACKGROUND I ISSUE 

FFDMMG represents 4 employees in the Safety category that includes Division and Battalion 
Chiefs. It represents employees whose base salaries total over $600,000. 

The existing Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Folsom and the CFFDMMG 
expired on December 31, 2019. The parties began negotiations on a new MOU on October 1, 
2019 and reached a tentative agreement on January 29, 2020. The membership of FMMG 
ratified the attached tentative agreement on January 29, 2020. 

The new proposed successor Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is being presented to 
the City Council for consideration and approval. 

1 
Page 23

Item No. 4.



POLICY / RULE 

Government Code Title 1, Division 4, Chapter 10 commonly known as the Meyers-Milias
Brown Act requires that representatives of the Governing Body of a public agency shall meet 
and confer in good faith regarding wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment 
with representatives of recognized employee organizations. Both parties shall endeavor to 
reach a tentative agreement within the scope of representation, and, if a tentative agreement is 
reached and ratified by the respective parties, they shall prepare a written memorandum of 
understanding. 

ANALYSIS 

A tentative agreement was reached by the parties and the proposed successor MOU, which 
will be effective January 1, 2020, contains the following changes that have economic impact, 
as outlined below: 

• The MOU is for the three-year period from January 1, 2020 thru December 31, 2022. 

• Cost-of-living adjustments are to be made as follows: 
• January 1, 2020 of 2.50%, 
• January 1, 2021 of 2.25%, and 
• January 1, 2022 of 2.50%. 

• Salary Schedule A is eliminated, and the new salary schedules are reduced from 15 
steps to 7 or 8 steps with 2.5% step increases. 

• A market adjustment was made to the Battalion Chief salary schedule in order to be 
internally comparable and externally competitive. 

• The education incentive pay incentive is eliminated as a separate pay category and 
included in base salary. 

• An associate degree is required for Battalion Chiefs. A bachelor's degree is required 
for Division Chiefs. 

• Certification requirements were changed from being optional to EMT certification 
being required and Paramedic License is preferred. EMT cert pay not changed, 
Paramedic license pay increased from $250/month to $425/month. 

• As of January 1, 2020, employees will pay 20% of the dental and vision premium cost. 

• As of January 1, 2020, eligibility for retiree dental and vision coverage increases from 
60 months to 120 months. For those retiring on or after October 1, 2020 the City 
contribution is limited to 5% per year of service up to a maximum of 80%. 

Page 24

Item No. 4.



• Makes permanent the sharing of High Deductible Health Plan savings. 

• Increased uniform allowance from $975 to $1075. 

• Tuition reimbursement increased from $800/year to $900/year. 

• Deferred Compensation increased $25 at each designated years of service. Match still 
required. 

The MOU also makes several non-economic changes: 
o Clarifies Long and Short-term disability policy limits. 
o Clarifies VEBA/HRA language. 
o Eliminates Retiree Health Reopener. 
o Adds PEPRA language. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

The first-year gross wage cost increases of this agreement are $17,878 to the General Fund. 
Benefit costs increases will total $10,850. Funds have been appropriated in the FYI 9-20 
budget to cover these costs. 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

This item is exempt from an Environmental Review. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Resolution No. 10391 -A Resolution Authorizing Adoption of a Memorandum of 
Understanding between the City of Folsom and the City of Folsom Fire Department 
Middle Management Employees (CFFDMME) for the period of January 1, 2020 
through December 31, 2022. 

2. Proposed Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Folsom and the City of 
Folsom Fire Department Middle Management Employees (CFFDMME) for the 
period of January 1, 2020 thru December31, 2022. 

James 
Assis 

Page 25

Item No. 4.



ATTACHMENT 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 10391 - A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ADOPTION OF A 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF FOLSOM 
AND THE CITY OF FOLSOM FIRE DEPARTMENT MIDDLE MANAGEMENT 
EMPLOYEES (CFFDMME) FOR THE PERIOD OF JANUARY 1, 2020 THROUGH 
DECEMBER 31, 2022 

Page 26

Item No. 4.



RESOLUTION NO. 10391 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ADOPTION OF A MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF FOLSOM AND THE CITY OF 

FOLSOM FIRE DEPARTMENT MIDDLE MANAGEMENT EMPLOYEES 
(CFFDMME) FOR THE PERIOD OF 

JANUARY 1, 2020 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2022 

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom and the City of Folsom Fire Department Middle 
Management Employees (CFFDMME) have reached an agreement to amend the existing 
Memorandum of Understanding regarding certain terms and conditions of employment for 
the period January 1, 2020 thru December 31, 2022; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom that 
the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the City of Folsom Fire Department 
Middle Management Employees (CFFDMME) for the period of January 1, 2020 to 
December 31, 2022 is hereby approved, and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom authorizes the 
City Manager to execute said Memorandum of Understanding on behalf of the City of 
Folsom. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 25th day of February 2020 by the following roll-call vote: 

A YES: Council Member(s): 

NOES: Council Member(s): 

ABSENT: Council Member(s): 

ABSTAIN: Council Member(s): 

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK 

Page 27

Item No. 4.



ATTACHMENT 2 

PROPOSED MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF FOLSOM AND THE CITY OF FOLSOM FIRE 
DEPARTMENT MIDDLE MANAGEMENT EMPLOYEES (CFFDMME) 
FOR THE PERIOD OF JANUARY 1, 2020 THRO DECEMBER 31, 2022 

Page 28

Item No. 4.



CITY OF 

DISTINCTIVE BY NATURE 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDlNG 

BETWEEN 

CITY OF FOLSOM FIRE DEPARTMENT 
MIDDLE MANAGEMENT EMPLOYEES 

(CFFDMME) 

AND 

CITY OF FOLSOM 

January 1, 2017January 1, 2020 to December 31, 
2019December 31, 2022 

Page 29

Item No. 4.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

PREAMBLE ...................................................................................................................... 4 

ARTICLE I. RECOGNITION AND COVERAGE ...................................................... 4 

1. RECOGNITION ......... ... ..... ......... ........ .... .... .. .. .... ... .. ... .. ... .. ....... .... ... .. ... ... .. .. .. ....... 4 
2. CONTINUATION OF BENEFITS ...... ..... ... ........ .... .. ....... ..... ...... .... .... ..... .. ... ........ 4 
3. MEETING AND CONFERING DURING THE TERM OF THE MOU ... ... ..... 5 
4. SEVERANCE ... ...... ... ..... ... .... ..... .. .... ... ... ... .... ...... .... .... ...... ........ .... .... ... ..... .... .. .. ... 5 

ARTICLE II. MANAGEMENT RIGHTS ...................................................................... 6 

ARTICLE Ill. SALARY AND OTHER COMPENSATION ....................................... 7 

1. IMPLEMENTATIONOFNEWSALARYRANGE . ......... . . . .. . . .. . . ............ 7 
2. MARKET SURVEY .................... .... . . .. ... . . .. .. . .. . . . . . ........... . ... .. . 

..... ... 2& 
3. LONGEVITYPAY ........ .................. ........ .......... .. .. .. .. ... ......... .... ... ..... .. ... ... .. ... .... 29 
4. DEFERRED COMPENSATION ....... .... ................... ..... ... ................................ 109 
5. VEHICLE ASSIGNMENT ....... .. .... ... ......................................... .. .................... 109 
6. CELLULAR TELEPHONE ASSIGNMENT .............................. ...................... 109 
7. RETIREMENT ...... ...... ...... ...... .. .. .... ..... ...... ..... .... .... ... ...... ..... ......... ........ .... ..... .. 109 
8. PRE-RETIREMENT OPTIONAL SETTLEMENT 2W DEATH BENEFIT 

(SURVIVORS) .................................. .... ....... .................................................. 11-l-l-
9. EMT IA CERTIFICATION ... .. .. .. .... .... ... .... .... .. .... .... .... ... ........ .... ... .... .. .. ..... ... 12-l-l-

ARTICLE IV. OVERTIME ....................................................................................... 1211 

1. OVERTIME COMPUTATION .... .. ... ... .................................... ...................... 12-l-l-

ARTICLE V. HOURS OF WORK .......................................................................... 13-li 

1. SHIFTS ....... ......................................... ...................................... ...................... J.lH 
ARTICLE VI. LEAVES ............................................................................................ 13-li 

1. ANNUAL LEA VE ...... .... .. .. ......... ..... .. ....... ....... ........... ............... .. .... .............. UH 
2. MANAGEMENT LEA VE ....... ...... .... ......... ... ..... ..... .... .. .... ....... .. ..... ....... ... ..... 14Y 
3. LEAVE CONVERSION RATES .. .. .......................................... ... ................. 15-1-4 
4. SICKLEAVE ..................................... .. ................................... ..... ................... 16-l-4 
5. HOLIDAY PAY···················································· ... · ............ ............................. 16B 
6. VACATION SCHEDULING ......................................................................... 16B 
7. BEREAVEMENT LEAVE ........................................................... .................. 16B 
8. PERSONAL LEA VE TIME ....... .... ............ ... ... ..... .. ...... ......... .... ............. .. .. .... 17B 

ARTICLE VII. INSURANCE ................................................................................... 171'-

1. HEAL TH INSURANCE ........ .......... ..... .......... .. ...... ...... ... ... ...... .. ......... .. ... .... .. 17-1-6 
2. DENTAL INSURANCE .... .. .. .... .. ... .. ....... .... .. ... .. .. ..... ......... .. ......... ..... .. ..... .. .. . 20-1-8 
3. VISION CARE ........... .... ..... ... .... .... ......... ........................... .... ... ................... ... 20-1-9 
4. LIFE INSURANCE .... ... ... .... .. ..... ........... ..... ... ....... .... ...... .... ..... .... .... ... ...... ..... . 20-1-9 

Page 2 Page 30

Item No. 4.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 3 

5. SHORT TERM DISABILITY PROGRAM .................................................... 20-1-9 
6. LONGTERMDISABILITYPROGRAM ...................................................... 21-1-9 
7. RETIREE HEAL TH INSURANCE. .............................................................. 21-1-9 

ARTICLE VIII. ALLOWANCES AND REIMBURSEMENTS ............................ 242i 

1. UNIFORM ALLOWANCE ............................................................................ 24~ 
2. TUITION/BOOKS REIMBURSEMENT ....................................................... 24~ 
3. SCBA OPTICS REIMBURSEMENT ............................................................. 25;g 

ARTICLE IX. MISCELLANEOUS ......................................................................... 2~ 

1. JOB CLASSIFICATIONS ........ ... ................. ... ........ ........ ........................ .... ... 25;g 
2. SHORT TERM SUSPENSION ..... ............ ............... ... .................................... 25;g 
3. FITNESS EVALUATION (WELLNESS) ................................................. .... 25;g 
4. LABOR/MANAGEMENT TEAM .................................................................. 26~ 

ARTICLE X. SIGNATURE CLAUSE .................................................................... 2724 

1. SIGNATURECLAUSE .................................................................................. 27~ 

Page 3 
Page 31

Item No. 4.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page4 

PREAMBLE 

On the date hereinafter subscribed, authorized representatives of the City of 
Folsom, herein called "City", and authorized representatives of the City of Folsom 
Fire Department Mid-Management Employees, herein called "CFFDMME", made 
and entered into this Memorandum of Understanding, hereinafter referred to as 
"Agreement" or "MOU." Pursuant to Section 3500 et seq. of the Government 
Code of the State of California, an agreement between the aforementioned 
parties has as its purpose the promotion of harmonious labor relations; 
establishment of an equitable and peaceful procedure for the resolution of 
differences; and the establishment of rates of pay, hours of work, and other terms 
and conditions of employment. 

The term "agreement" as used herein means the written agreement provided 
under Section 3505.1 of the Government Code. 

It is understood and agreed that this Memorandum of Understanding supersedes 
and replaces all previous such actions on these points by and between the City 
of Folsom and the CFFDMME. 

ARTICLE I. RECOGNITION AND COVERAGE 

1. RECOGNITION 

The CFFDMME is recognized as the exclusive representative, as provided 
in the City's Employer-Employee Relations Policy, for all employees 
assigned to the Fire Mid-Management Bargaining Unit in the following 
classifications: 

Battalion Chief 
Fire Division Chief 

In the event new classifications are established which are appropriate for 
this unit, the parties agree to meet and confer for the purpose of including 
such in the Fire Mid-Management Bargaining Unit. 

2. CONTINUATION OF BENEFITS 

A. This Memorandum of Understanding is intended both as the final 
expression of the agreement between the parties with respect to 
the included terms and as a complete and exclusive statement of 
the terms of this Memorandum of Understanding. No amendment, 
alteration, understanding, variation, waiver or modification of any 

Page4 Page 32

Item No. 4.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 5 

terms or provisions of this Memorandum of Understanding shall in 
any manner be binding upon the parties unless made and executed 
in writing between the parties hereto and approved and 
implemented by the City Council. 

B. Terms and conditions of employment as specified in this 
Memorandum of Understanding shall remain in full force and effect 
during the term of this Memorandum of Understanding unless 
modified pursuant to the above paragraph. Where ordinances, 
rules, and policies conflict with this Memorandum of Understanding, 
the Memorandum of Understanding shall prevail. 

3. MEETING AND CONFERING DURING THE TERM OF THE MOU 

This Memorandum of Understanding shall be effective January 1, 2G4-7 
2020 and shall expire December 31, ~2022. Unless specifically 
agreed otherwise, this Memorandum of Understanding sets forth the full 
and entire understanding of the parties regarding the matters contained in 
this Memorandum of Understanding and supersedes and cancels all prior 
or existing understandings or agreements between the parties, whether 
formal or informal. 

During the term of this Memorandum of Understanding, representatives of 
the City and CFFDMME may meet and confer on matters of mutual 
concern. Any agreement reached between the parties shall be 
memorialized in writing and be deemed a "Side Letter" to this 
Memorandum of Understanding. 

The City Manager is authorized to enter into a Side Letter on behalf of the 
City for purposes of the interpretation or administration of this 
Memorandum of Understanding. A Side Letter to this Memorandum of 
Understanding shall not be deemed valid until signed by the City Manager 
or designee, approved as to form by the City Attorney, and signed by an 
authorized representative of CFFDMME. Side Letters agreed to during 
the term of this Memorandum of Understanding may be incorporated into 
any successor Memorandum of Understanding. 

The parties agree to begin negotiations on a successor Memorandum of 
Understanding not later than 120 calendar days prior to the expiration of 
this Memorandum of Understanding. 

4. SEVERANCE 

Should any provision of this Agreement be found unlawful or 
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, or invalidated by 
subsequent enacted legislation, the remg_inder of the Agreement shall 

Page 5 Page 33

Item No. 4.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 6 

continue in force. Upon occurrence of such an event, the parties shall 
meet and confer as soon as practical to renegotiate the invalidated 
provision(s) . 

Upon a change in the dental, vision, short term, long term, or life 
insurance plans provided in this Agreement, the parties agree to meet and 
confer over the impact of the change on employees in the Fire Mid
Management Bargaining Unit. 

ARTICLE II. MANAGEMENT RIGHTS 

To ensure that the City is able to carry out its statutory functions and 
responsibilities, nothing contained in this article shall be construed to require the 
City to negotiate on matters which are solely a function of management, or not 
otherwise assigned as an employee right, including the following: 

1. To manage the City generally and to determine issues of policy. 

2. To determine the existence of facts which are the basis of management 
decisions. 

3. To determine the necessity for and organization of any service or activity 
conducted by the City, and to expand or diminish services. 

4. To determine the nature, manner, means, technology, and extent of 
services to be provided to the public. 

5. To determine methods of financing . 

6. To determine types of equipment or technology to be used. 

7. To determine and/or change the facilities, methods, technology, means, 
organizational structure, and size and composition of the work force, and 
to allocate and assign the work which the City operations are to be 
conducted. 

8. To determine and change the number of locations, relocations, and types 
of operations, processes, and materials to be used in carrying out all City 
functions, including, but not limited to, the right to contract for or sub
contract any work or operation of the City. 

9. To assign work to and schedule employees in accordance with 
requirements as determined by the City, and to establish and change work 
schedules and assignments upon reasonable notice and good faith meet 
and confer. 

Page6 Page 34

Item No. 4.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 7 

10. To lay off employees from duties because of lack of work or funds, or 
under conditions where continued work would be ineffective or non
productive. 

11 . To establish and modify productivity and performance programs and 
standards. 

12. To dismiss, suspend without pay, demote, reprimand, without salary step 
increases, or otherwise discipline employees for cause. 

13. To determine minimum qualifications, skills, abilities, knowledge, selection 
procedures and standards, and job classifications, and to reclassify 
employees. 

14. To hire, transfer, promote and demote employees for nondisciplinary 
reasons. 

15. To determine policies, procedures, and standards for selection, training 
and promotion of employees. 

16. To establish reasonable employee performance standards, including, but 
not limited to, quality and quantity standards, and to require compliance 
therewith. 

17. To maintain order and efficiency in City facilities and operations. 

18. To establish, publish, and/or modify rules and regulations to maintain 
order and safety and health in the City. The City agrees to meet and 
confer on any items that fall within the scope of Government Code Section 
3500 et, seq. 

19. To restrict the activity of an employee organization on the municipal 
property and on municipal time except as set forth in the City's Personnel 
Rules and Regulations. 

20. To take all necessary actions to carry out the mission of the City in 
emergencies. 

ARTICLE Ill. SALARY AND OTHER COMPENSATION 

1. IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW SALARY RANGE FIRE DIVISION CHIEF 

The salary range§ for the class of Fire Division ChiefCFFDMME 
represented classes is-are attached to this Memorandum of 
Understanding (Attachment A). This-These salary range§ shall be 

Page 7 Page 35

Item No. 4.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 8 

2. 

effective ~bruary 1, 201 ?January 1, 2020. -+1=1-i&-These new salary range§. 
include_s Education Incentive Pay previously paid as additional 
compensation. Effective February 1, 2017, employees in the class of Fire 
Q.ivision Chief shall not receive Education Incentive Pay. 

Salary Range Advancement: 

Anyone appointed to CFFDMME classes on or after January 1, 2020 shall 
advance one (1) salary step upon receipt of a merit increase at their 
anniversary date. All salary step advancement criteria contained in City 
Personnel Rules shall continue to apply 

Salary Range Advancement- Incumbents as of January 1, 2020: 

Incumbent Fire Division Chiefs as of January 1, 2020 will advance two (2) 
steps upon receipt of a merit increase, until reaching the top of the range. 
Incumbent Fire Battalion Chief as of January 1. 2020, will advance two (2) 
steps upon receipt of a merit increase, up to Step 6, and then will advance 
one (1) salary step per merit increase thereafter. Future incumbents will 
advance one salary step per merit increase. 

Salary Adjustments 

A. Effective as of January 1, 2020 all employees shall receive a salary 
increase of 2.5%. 

B. Effective January 1, 2021, all employees shall receive a salary 
increase of 2.25%. 

C. Effective January 1, 2022 , all employees shall receive a salary 
increase of 2.5%. 

A. Salary Steps 

The Fire Division Chief salary range shall consist of fifteen salary steps 
(steps 1 through 15). Each step shall be approximately 2.5% above 
the previous step, except that the difference beti.veen Step 1 and Step 
2 shall be approximately 5%. 

8. Salary Step Placement of Incumbent Employees 

The placement of incumbent employees in the new salary range for 
Fire Division Chief shall be as follows: 

Page 8 Page 36

Item No. 4.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding 

Ken Cusano shall be placed at Step 5. 
Mark Piacentini shall be placed at Step 5. 
Chad \Nilson shall be placed at Step 7. 

C. Salary Step Advancement 

Page 9 

(1) Employees employed by the City prior to January 1, 2014 who are 
assigned Range A for City job classifications for the remainder of 
their continuous employment with the City shall: 

i. Retain their current anniversary date. 
ii. Advance in the salary range 2 (two) salary steps upon reaching 

their anniversary date. 

(2) Employees Hired After JanuaFJ' 1, 2017 shall : 

i. l\dvance one salary step upon reaching their anni\mrsary date. 

(3) All salaFJ' step advancement criteria contained in City Personnel 
Rules shall continue to apply. 

2-:-3. MARKET SURVEY 

Should the City conduct a market survey of the class of F"ire Di•.iision Chief 
or equivalentCFDDMME classes, the study shall determine the 
relationship of the total compensation for the City of Folsom for employees 
in the job classifications of Fire Division Chief or equivalent by the City of 
Folsom when compared to comparable job classifications in the following 
agencies: City of Davis, City of Rocklin, City of West Sacramento, City of 
Sacramento, Sacramento Metropolitan Fire Protection District, City of 
Roseville, El Dorado Hills Fire District, and Cosumnes Community 
Services District. 

4.J. LONGEVITY PAY 

A. Subject to subsection B below, employees shall be eligible to receive 
longevity pay beginning with ten (10) or more years of City service. 
Longevity pay is contingent upon the fact that the eligible employee has 
received an overall satisfactory or above rating in his/her last annual 
performance evaluation. The longevity pay formula is based on 2.5--¼% 
increments and is as follows: 

2.5--¼% after ten (10) continuous years of city service 
TO 5% after fifteen (15) continuous years of city service 

Page 9 
Page 37

Item No. 4.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding 

TO 7 ~-¼% after twenty (20) continuous years of city service 

8 . Employees hired after July 1, 2010 shall not be eligible to receive 
Longevity Pay. 

4§. DEFERRED COMPENSATION 

Page 10 

For employees participating in the City's deferred compensation program, 
the City agrees to make the following matching contributions in 
accordance with the following schedule: 

Length of Service 

0 -10 years 
10 -15 years 
15 -20 years 
20+ years 

&.- 6. VEHICLE ASSIGNMENT 

Maximum City Matching Contribution 

$225.00250.00 per month 
$250.00275.00 per month 
$275.00300.00 per month 
$325.00350.00 per month 

At the discretion With the recommendation of the Fire Chief and approval 
of the City Manager, employees may be provided a department vehicle for 
transportation to and from job-related activities. 

07 7. CELLULAR TELEPHONE ASSIGNMENT 

At the discretion of the Fire Chief, employees may be assigned a cellular 
telephone for communications accessibility. 

7-c 8. RETIREMENT 

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) - Formula 

~ All safety employees hired prior to June 30, 2010 shall receive the 
retirement benefit of 3% @ 50. All safety employees hired on or after 
July 1, 2010 shall receive the retirement benefit of 2%@50. Pursuant 
to the California Public Employee's Pension Reform Act of 2013 (AB 
340), all employees hired after January 1, 2013 shall receive the 
retirement benefit of 2.7@57. 

f2-) All employees hired prior to June 30, 2010 shall receive the 
retirement benefit (subject to PERS limits) based on the single 
highest twelve (12) months of compensation. All employees hired 
on or after July 1, 2010 shall receive the retirement benefit (subject 
to PERS limits) based on the employee's highest average monthly 

Page 10 
Page 38

Item No. 4.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 11 

B. 

compensation during thirty-six (36) consecutive months of 
employment as provided in state law pertaining to PERS. 
(3) Should another employee organization representing a City 
bargaining unit agree to a retirement benefit formula for safety 
employees that is different than the benefit formulas in ,A,rticle 111 , 
Section 8, subsections /\1 , or A2, GFFDMME shall be given the 
option to amend the appropriate retirement benefit formula 
contained herein to match the retirement benefit formula agreed to 
with the other employee organization. Any change shall be applied 
prospectively. 

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) -- Contributions 

fB The City agrees to pay the full cost of employer contributions 
to the Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) for all 
employees in the CFFDMME bargaining unit, as currently 
contracted with PERS. Employees shall pay the employee share of 
retirement according to the following implementation schedule: 

i. Effective April 1, 2011 , safety employees shall pay 
5% of the employee share of retirement. 

ii. Effective July 1, 2011 , safety employees shall pay 7% 
of the employee share of retirement. 

Effective July 1, 2012,Classic safety employees shall pay 
9% ef-as the employee share of retirement. 
Hi-:- PEPRA safety employees pay the employee share of 
retirement as specified and adjusted by PERS. 

(2) The City agrees to continue Government Gode Seotion 
20691 , Gommrsion of Employer Paid Member Contributions 
(EPMG). 

8-c 9. PRE-RETIREMENT OPTIONAL SETTLEMENT 2W DEATH BENEFIT 
(SURVIVORS) 

The City agrees to modify Ithe City's contract with the Public Employees' 
Retirement System (PERS) to addincludes Government Code Section 
21548, Pre-Retirement Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. 

Page 11 
Page 39

Item No. 4.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 12 

10 . ...fh EMT 1A CERTIFICATION/ PARAMEDIC LICENSE 

The parties agree that an- Emergency Medical Technician 1 (EMT 1) EMT 1A 
certification is required for all CFFDMME positions and that a Paramedic License 
is optional but preferred. shall be optional. Employees shall receive $250.00 per 
month in addition to in their base salary.who possess for a valid EMT 1A 
Emergency Medical technician 1 (EMT 1) Certificate or $425 per month for a 
Paramedic License.:. shall receive a $250.00 per month increase in their base 
salary. 

ARTICLE IV. OVERTIME 

1. OVERTIME COMPUTATION 

A. Employees assigned to a 56-hour workweek shall be compensated 
at the rate of time and one-half of the total hourly compensation 
rate for all hours worked in emergency response that are not part of 
the employee's normally assigned work schedule. 

B. Employees assigned to a 40-hour work week and assigned to work 
overtime in a 56-hour shift position shall be compensated at one 
and one-half times the employee's straight time hourly rate of pay 
based on a 56-hour work week (2912 hours worked per year rather 
than 2080 hours). 

C. Employees assigned to work a special event for which the City is 
reimbursed for the cost of City fire personnel shall be compensated 
at one and one-half times the employee's straight time hourly rate 
of pay based on either a 40 hour or 56-hour work schedule, 
depending on the employee's normal assigned work week. 

D. For purposes of this section, total hourly compensation shall 
include base salary, longevity pay, paramedic pay, EMT pay and 
40-hour work schedule salary differential received by an employee. 

Page 12 Page 40

Item No. 4.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 13 

ARTICLE V. HOURS OF WORK 

1. SHIFTS 

A. Employees shall work either a 56-hour workweek or a 40-hour 
workweek. Employees working a 56-hour workweek shall work the 
following work shift: 

(1) Personnel working a 56-hour workweek (2,912 hours per 
year) will work a total of four shifts within a twelve (12) day 
cycle. Each shift shall be for 24 hours in duration and shall 
be scheduled back-to-back, contiguously. A shift rotation is 
defined as two (2) back-to-back, contiguous 24-hour shifts. 

(2) The twelve (12) day cycle shall start at 0800 hours. 

(3) Pursuant to Article II, Management Rights, of this MOU work 
schedules shall continue to be at the discretion of the Fire 
Chief in consultation with the City Manager, upon reasonable 
notice and good faith meet and confer with the CFFDMME. 
The City also reserves the right to review this shift schedule 
on a periodic basis in order to address any potential 
inequities or problems. 

B. Employees assigned to a 40-hour workweek may work a flexible 
schedule upon approval of the Fire Chief. Telecommuting may be 
considered as part of this flexible schedule for assignments that 
may be applicable. 

ARTICLE VI. LEAVES 

1. ANNUAL LEAVE 

A. Employees shall receive the following Annual Leave credits. This is 
inclusive of 13 holidays for suppressioh personnel. 

Non-shift personnel (40-hour work week): 

Length of Service 
Allowance 

0 - 5 years 
5 - 10years 
10 - 15 years 
15+ years 

Page 13 

Annual Leave 

16 hours per month 
19 hours per month 
22 hours per month 
25 hours per month 

Page 41

Item No. 4.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding 

Shift personnel (56-hour work week): 

Length of Service 
Allowance 

0 - 5 years 
month 
5 - 10years 

month 
10 - 15 years 
month 
15+ years 
month 

Page 14 

Annual Leave 

Je-23 hours per 

44-28 hours per 

4-a---32 hours per 

48-35 hours per 

B. Except as specified in Article VI, Section C (1) below, employees 
shall not accrue sick leave. However, employees who have 
accumulated sick leave hours shall retain such hours and may use 
such leave credits pursuant to Article VI, Section 4, Sick Leave, of 
this MOU. 

C. Employees with annual leave balances that exceed the annual 
leave caps of 320 for non-shift/448 for shift employees as of the 
date of ratification by City Council of this MOU, may retain such 
balances until the annual leave balances are reduced to the new 
caps. 

(1) To avoid exceeding the maximum of 320/448 hours of 
accumulated annual leave, the City may direct an employee 
to take time off on annual leave. However, in the event the 
City does not approve annual leave for an employee in an 
amount sufficient to reduce accumulated annual leave to 
320/448 hours, the number of hours that exceed 320/448 
hours shall be rolled over into sick leave until the annual 
leave balance is reduced to the cap. 

(4) Employees may cash out up to 40 hours of annual leave for non
shift personnel, and 56 hours of annual leave for shift personnel per 
fiscal year. Annual leave shall be cashed out pursuant to 
procedures established by the City Human Resources Department. 

(5) Accrued annual leave shall be cashed out upon separation of 
employment with City on an hour for hour basis. 

2. MANAGEMENT LEAVE 

Page 14 Page 42

Item No. 4.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 15 

Employees shall receive management leave at a rate of 80 hours annually 
based on a fiscal calendar. Such leave shall be posted to affected 
employees on July 1st each year. Employees promoted with less than 12 
months' service in a CFFDMME shall accrue management leave on a 
prorated basis. 

A member of CFFDMME who works substantially more than 80 hours per 
pay period without compensation, may be allocated up to a total of 100 
hours per year of management leave. Annually, the Fire Chief may 
provide a list to the City Manager of those employees who they feel are 
deserving of the additional management leave. A list of regularly 
performed duties in excess of compensated hours shall be included with 
each employee's name. The list shall be submitted for the City Manager's 
review and approval no later than July 1 of each year. All such requests 
are subject to final approval by .the City Manager 

3. LEAVE CONVERSION RATES 

The City and CFFDMME agree to the following terms related to the 
conversion of leave hours by employees when they are placed in 
temporary and permanent assignments within the department. 

A. Conversion from 56 Hour to 40 Hour Work Week Assignments. 
Employees temporarily or permanently assigned to staff positions 
on a 40-hour work week schedule shall have all leave usage banks 
converted using a division factor of 1.4 for each hour available in 
the leave bank. As an example, a 56-hour employee with 100 hours 
of annual leave would see their annual leave bank adjusted to 
71.43 hours when the employee is assigned to a 40-hour work 
assignment. 

B. Conversion from 40 Hour to 56 Hour Work Week Assignments. 
Employees temporarily or permanently assigned to line positions on 
a 56-hour work week schedule shall have all leave usage banks 
converted using a multiplier factor of 1.4 for each hour available in 
the leave bank. As an example, a 40-hour employee with 71.43 
hours of annual leave would see their annual leave bank adjusted 
to 100 hours when the employee is assigned to a 56-hour work 
assignment. 

C. Leave usage rates shall be applied at the hourly rate used by the 
employee during the temporary or permanent assignment. 

D. Leave conversion rates shall be applied to all leave accrual banks 
provided to the employee by the City. 

Page 15 Page 43

Item No. 4.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 16 

4. SICK LEAVE 

A. Sick leave may be used by employees for purposes enumerated in 
City Personnel Rules. 

B. Consistent with PERS law, sick leave shall be converted to service 
credit for purposes of retirement (Government Code section 
20965). 

C. Accrued sick leave shall not be cashed out. 

D. There shall be no maximum on the number of hours of sick leave 
an employee may accrue (bank). 

5. HOLIDAY PAY 

Employees shall receive a 6% Holiday Pay differential. Holiday Pay shall 
be multiplied by the employee's salary step. Employees with accrued 
Holiday Leave credits on the books may take such time off in the same 
manner as Annual Leave. Holiday Pay shall be compensable for 
retirement (PERS) purposes. 

6. VACATION SCHEDULING 

The City and CFFDMME agree to establish a vacation scheduling 
procedure as noted below: 

A. No more than one (1) employee shall be granted leave for vacation 
purposes at the same time; provided, however, that on holidays the 
Fire Chief may authorize more than one employee. 

B. Employees shall not be granted leave for vacation purposes for 
more than forty-five (45) consecutive calendar days. Employees 
must return to duty for at least fourteen (14) calendar days before 
being eligible to take additional leave for vacation purposes. 

C. Employees will not be contacted during vacation periods to work 
overtime during their vacation and will not be force hired to maintain 
normal day-to-day minimum staffing during their scheduled 
vacation period. Employees may be subject to vacation 
cancellation and recall pursuant to City Personnel Rules and 
Regulations. 

7. BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 

Page 16 Page 44

Item No. 4.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 17 

Classified permanent or promotional probationary employees may be 
granted a maximum of ninety-six (96) hours or four (4) shifts from accrued 
leave time for each instance to deal with matters related to the funeral, 
death, or critical illness (where death appears imminent) of any member of 
the employee's immediate family, including aunt, uncle, brother-in-law, 
sister-in-law, daughter-in-law and son-in-law. 

Annual Leave usage for Bereavement Leave shall be taken by the 
employee in twelve hour or greater increments. 

8. PERSONAL LEAVE TIME 

A. Any Personal Leave Time (PL T) remaining on the books may be 
used by employees for time off on an hour for hour basis until the 
employee has exhausted the bank. Use of PL T time shall be 
subject to the following: 

(1) Use of PL T shall be subject to the operating needs of the 
Fire department. 

(2) Use of PL T shall not cause the Fire department to backfill 
behind an employee using PL T. 

(3) PL T shall have no cash value and may not be cashed out. 
If an employee terminates employment with the City or 
retires, any PL T remaining in the bank shall be surrendered 
with no value to the employee. 

ARTICLE VII. INSURANCE 

The City's obligation for health, dental, vision, life and disability insurance 
coverage is limited to plan contribution. Plan content, including eligibility criteria, 
is determined by the respective carriers. 

1. HEAL TH INSURANCE 

A. Effective April 1, 2011, as demonstrated in the example below, 
employees shall be included in the same health plan design as the 
majority of City employees, including copayments. The City's 
maximum monthly contribution for active employee health 
insurance coverage shall be adjusted annually to an amount equal 
to 50% of the increase, if any, above the prior year's Kaiser monthly 
premium rate combined with the City's prior year contribution 
amount for employee only, employee plus 1, and employee plus 2 
or more (rounded to the next whole number). The employee is 

Page 17 Page 45

Item No. 4.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 18 

responsible for the difference between the applicable premium and 
the City's contribution. 

Example: 

Employee only category: The 2010 monthly premium for Kaiser 
employee only is $507 .89 and the City's maximum monthly 
contribution is $486.00. If this premium increases by 10% for 2011, 
or to $558.68, the City's contribution for 2011 for the employee only 
category would be computed as follows: $558.68 - $507.89 = 
$50.79, $50.79 x 50% = $23.40, $486.00 + $23.40 = $509.40. After 
rounding to the next whole number, the City's maximum 
contribution for health insurance for the employee only category 
would be $509 per month. If the premium increases by 10% for 
2012, or to $614.55, the City's contribution for 2012 for the 
employee only category would be computed as follows: $614.55 -
$558.68 = $55.87, $55.87 X 50% = $27.93, $509.00 + $27.93 = 
$536.93. After rounding to the next whole number, the City's 
maximum contribution for health insurance for the employee only 
category would be $537 per month. 

Employee plus 1 category: The 2010 monthly premium for Kaiser 
employee plus 1 is $1,015.78 and the City's maximum monthly 
contribution is $972.00. If this premium increases by 10% for 2011, 
or to $1,117.36, the City's contribution for 2011 for the employee 
plus 1 category would be computed as follows: $1,117.36 -
$1,015.78 = $101.58, $101.58 X 50% = $50.79, $972.00 + $50.79. 
= $1,022.79. After rounding to the next whole number, the City's 
maximum contribution for health insurance for the employee plus 1 
category would be $1,023 per month. If the premium increases by 
10% for 2012, or to $1,229.10, the City's contribution for 2012 for 
the employee plus 1 category would be computed as follows: 
$1,229.10-$1,117.36 = $111.74, $111.74 X 50% = $55.87, 
$1,023.00 + $55.87. = $1,078.87. After rounding to the next whole 
number, the City's maximum contribution for health insurance for 
the employee plus 1 category would be $1,079 per month. 

Employee plus 2 or more category: The 2010 monthly premium for 
Kaiser employee plus 2 or more is $1,320.52 and the City's 
maximum monthly contribution is $1,263.00. If this premium 
increases by 10% for 2011, or to $1,452.57, the City's contribution 
for 2011 for the employee plus 2 or more category would be 
computed as follows: $1,452.57 - $1,320.00 = $132.57, $132.57 x 
50% = $66.29, $1,263 + $66.29 = $1,329.29. After rounding to the 
next whole number, the City's maximum contribution for health 
insurance for the employee plus 2 or more category would be 

Page 18 Page 46

Item No. 4.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 19 

$1,329 per month. If the premium increases by 10% for 2012, or to 
$1,597.83, the City's contribution for 2012 for the employee plus 2 
or more category would be computed as follows: $1,597.83 -
$1,452.57 = $145.26, $145.26 X 50% = $72.63, $1,329 + $72.63 = 
$1,401.63. After rounding to the next whole number, the City's 
maximum contribution for health insurance for the employee plus 2 
or more category would be $1,402 per month. 

B. Employees who select a health plan with higher monthly premiums than 
the maximum monthly premium paid by the City (Section A above) shall 
pay the difference through payroll deduction. Should employees select a 
health plan with lower monthly premiums than the maximum monthly 
premium paid the City, the City's contribution shall be limited to the cost of 
the monthly premium. 

C. Notwithstanding Section 1, Item A, the City's maximum monthly 
contribution for active employee health insurance coverage shall not be 
reduced more than eighty percent (80%) of the Kaiser premium cost for 
the employee only category, employee plus 1 category, or employee plus 
2 or more category. 

D. High Deductible Health Plans 

(1) The City agrees to offer twe-High Deductible Health Benefit 
Plans offered by the health benefit plan carriers. 

(2) The City agrees to make available a Health Savings Account 
(HSA) to eligible active employees who select either of the~ 
High Deductible Health Benefit Plans. 

(3) Fifty percent (50%) of the difference between the City's 
monthly contribution towards the cost of the Kaiser HMO 
Health plan premiums as set forth in Article VII, Section 1 of 
the MOU and the monthly premium for a High Deductible 
Health Plan shall be contributed into the employee's HSA. 
The City shall make this contribution through December 31 , 
2019, after which this Section shall sunset. 

Tax status of contributions, contribution amounts, and use of HSA 
funds shall be in accordance with federal and state law. 

E. The City will maintain an IRS 125 Medical Reimbursement Account. 
Employees may participate in the account pursuant to administrative 
procedures established by the City. 

Page 19 Page 47

Item No. 4.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 20 

F". Employees hired after October 1, 2000 and who retire from City 
service must have at least 60 months of continuous service as a 
City employee to qualify for dental and vision benefits. 

2. DENTAL INSURANCE 

Dental insurance will be provided by Delta Dental Services, Inc. The City 
will contribute 100% 80%of the monthly premium for an employee, 
employee and dependent or an employee plus family as set forth in the 
plan document. Employees will contribute 20% of the monthly premium. 
The Delta Dental Preferred Provider Program shall provide coverage 
maximum of $1,750 per year for employees/dependents who patronize 
Preferred Provider Program participating dentists. Employees/dependents 
that choose non-participating dentists shall have a coverage maximum of 
$1,500 per year. 

3. VISION CARE 

Vision insurance will be provided by Vision Services Plan (VSP). The City 
will contribute 100% 80% of the monthly premium for an employee, 
employee and dependent or an employee plus family as set forth in the 
plan document. Employees will contribute 20% of the monthly premium. 

The following elements shall provide the basis of VSP coverage: 

A. One eye exam every 12 months; 
B. One set of lenses every 12 months; 
C. $100 allowance/whole salewholesale basis for frames; and 
D. A co-pay of $5.00 per visit. 

4. LIFE INSURANCE 

The City agrees to provide $60,000 life insurance coverage and $60,000 
accidental death and dismemberment coverage for employees covered by 
this MOU. 

Eligible dependents shall receive $2,000 life insurance coverage. 

5. SHORT TERM DISABILITY PROGRAM 

The City agrees to provide a Short Term Disability Insurance Program, 
with the City paying 100% of the premium rate for the weekly indemnity 
insurance program (short-term disability) of up to 60% of salary, subject to 
the plan maximum. for up to sixty (60) calendar days. The waiting period 

Page 20 Page 48

Item No. 4.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 21 

for initiation of benefits shall be twelve (12) calendar days. Otherwise1 the 
City's obligation to provide Short Term Disability insurance coverage is 
limited to plan contributions. The Short Term Disability insurance carrier 
shall determine plan content. Any change in the Short Term Disability 
Insurance plan that results in changes to the disability benefit is subject to 
meeting and conferring 
The City agrees to continue the current Short Term Disability Program, for 
employees cm<ered by this MOU. 

The City agrees to provide a Short Term Disability Insurance Program, 
11,ith the City paying 100% of the premium rate for the 'Neekly indemnity 
insurance program (short term disability) of 60% of salary for up to 26 
'Neeks. The 'Nailing period for initiation of benefits shall be 12 calendar 
Gay&: 

6. LONG TERM DISABILITY PROGRAM 

The City agrees to provide a long-term disability program for employees in 
the CFFDMME Bargaining Unit as provided in the plan document. Plan 
coverage shall provide a maximum benefit of up to 60% of salary 1 up to 
age 65. The maximum payment on this plan is subject to plan agreement. 
The City agrees to provide a long term disability program for employee 
coverage shall provide for a maximum benefit of 60% of salary, up to age 
65. This program is for non job related injuries or illness. 

7. RETIREE HEAL TH INSURANCE 

A. Effective May 8, 2007, existing employees as of that date who 
retire 1 from City service may participate in the health insurance 
plans made available by the City for active employees until age 65 
when they move to a Medicare Advantage Plan per section 
4.A.ii.b.. The amount of the City's monthly contribution shall be 
determined as set forth below. Any costs that exceed the 
maximum paid by the City towards retiree health insurance costs 
shall be borne by the retiree. 

(1). Employees who retire with less than 5 years of service2 shall not be 
eligible to receive any City contribution toward the cost of retiree 
health insurance. 

1 "Existing employees" are exclusively permanent and/or probationary employees of the City of 
Folsom on the date tA-i-s-the Addendum is-was approved by the Folsom City Council (May 8, 
2007).,.... "Retire" or "retiree" is defined as any classified City employee who (1) applies for 
retirement with the Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) within ninety (90) days after 
terminating employment with the City; and (2) receives a PERS retirement benefit. 
2 "Service" is defined as full time (or equivalent) continuous permanent and/or probationary 
employment status with the City of Folsom. 

Page 21 Page 49

Item No. 4.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 22 

(2). Employees who retire with more than 5 years of service shall 
qualify for a monthly City retiree health insurance contribution. 

I. 

ii. 

iii. 

iv. 

V. 

Subject to the maximum set forth in Item 3 below, the City 
retiree health insurance contribution shall be as follows: 

Retiree only - an amount equal the City's contribution 
towards active employee health insurance for the category of 
"employee only." 
Retiree and one dependent - an amount equal to the City's 
contribution towards active employee health insurance for 
the category of "employee plus one." 

Retiree and two or more dependents - an amount equal to 
the City's contribution towards active employee health 
insurance for the category of "employee plus two or more" 
until the retiree reaches age 55. Thereafter, the City's 
contribution towards a retiree with two or more dependents 
shall be an amount equal to the City's contribution towards 
active employee health insurance for the category of 
"employee plus one" plus $100. 
Retirees and their covered family members who are 
Medicare eligible must move to an offered Medicare 
Advantage Plan option when they reach Medicare eligibility. 
These plans require that they enroll and pay for Medicare 
parts A and B. Retirees are responsible for showing proof of 
Medicare enrollment as required by the carrier. Medicare 
eligible retirees will be dropped from the City's non
Medicare plan upon Medicare eligibility and/or charged any 
additional costs associated for noncompliance by the plan 
carrier. 

(3). The City's monthly contribution toward the cost of retiree health 
insurance shall not exceed the maximum monthly contribution paid 
by the City to active employee health insurance for the categories 
of employee only (for retiree only), employee plus one (for retiree 
plus one dependent), and employee plus one plus $100 (for retiree 
plus two or more dependents), as of January 1, 2012. 

i. The January 1, 2012 cap for each category shall be adjusted 
each January thereafter by an amount not to exceed 3%, 
depending on the percent increase in the Consumer Price 
Index (CPI), U.S. Department of Labor, for November -
November of the previous year, Index CPI-W, Urban Wage 

Page 22 Page 50

Item No. 4.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 23 

Earners and Clerical Workers, Series #CWUR0400SA0, 
United States. (Example, if the cost of living for the specified 
period increases by 2%, the cap shall be increased by 2%. 
If the cost of living for the specified period increases by 4%, 
the cap shall be increased by 3% (cost of living increases in 
the cap shall be rounded to the nearest tenth.) 

Pursuant to applicable la'N, if administratively possible the City shall 
establish a tax exempt retiree health plan for all employees in the 
CFFDMME Bargaining Unit. The purpose of the plan is to provide a 
mechanism '.¥hereby employees may ¥oluntarily contribute toward 
future costs of retiree health insurance premiums and related 
expenses. The go¥erning plan shall be agreed to by CFFDMME and 
the City. 

(4). The City SAaU---contribute§ $25 per pay period into the VEBNRHSAan 
HRA for each probationary/permanent employee hired after July 1, 
2008. 

G. Retiree Health Benefits Reopener 

(1 ). The City agrees to conduct a bi annual actuarial study of the cost of 
health benefit programs for employees who retire from City 
employment. 

(2). A oopy of the completed actuarial study shall be sent to each 
employee organization that represents City employees. Upon 
request of either the City or CFFDMME, the parties agree to reopen 
the MOU and meet and confer in good faith on MOU provisions 
covering health, dental, and/or vision insuranoe programs for active 
employees and/or active employees who retiree from City 
employment. 

fJt-, If the City and an employee organization other than CFFDMME 
reopen that employee organization's MOU on the MOU provisions 
referenced in Item 2 above, the City will immediately notify 
CFFDMME and offer to meet and confer. 

Q.C. EffectiveEmployees who retire from City service as of January 1, 2020 
must have at least e0-120 months of continuous service as a City 
employee to qualify for dental and vision insurance benefits provided to 
active employees. For those retiring on or after October 1, 2020, the City 
shall contribute 5% of the premium per year of City service, up to an 80% 
City contribution. 

Page 23 
Page 51

Item No. 4.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 24 

ARTICLE VIII. ALLOWANCES AND REIMBURSEMENTS 

1. UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 

A. 

B. 

The City agrees to pay employees the sum of nine hundredone 
thousand and seventy-five ($9-7-§1075) per year for the purchase of 
approved on duty uniforms and attire. All uniforms purchased shall 
comply with the most current regulations and specifications as 
identified in Standard Operating Procedures (SOP). 

The City agrees to continue providing employees covered by this 
MOU the current uniform laundering services, with costs being 
assumed by the City. This subsection shall sunset on December 
31, 2019. 

2. TUITION/BOOKS REIMBURSEMENT 

Employees who attend job related classes/training programs that are 
approved by the department shall be entitled to reimbursement of costs for 
books, tuition, and lodging (pursuant to the City's lodging reimbursement 
schedule) up to ~nine hundred dollars ($~900.00) per fiscal year. 
The Fire Chief may authorize additional employee reimbursement costs 
above this limit, when requested by the employee, should said request not 
exceed the budgeted amount of the department for this program. 

Approval shall be given by the department Training Officer prior to the 
beginning of the class/training program. The City shall implement a 
procedure that allows for payment of an authorized class up front when 
requested by the employee. 

An employee may repeat a job-related course to maintain or upgrade 
his/her knowledge, skills and abilities. 

Attendance in job related classes/training programs will be non-mandatory 
and will not include overtime payment or reimbursement for costs of 
transportation, meals, or other incidental expenditures, unless otherwise 
specified prior to the course and approved by the department. 

Employees who fail to attend or satisfactorily complete a job-related 
class/training program shall reimburse the department for all costs 
incurred by the City. The City shall deduct the total amount of monies 
spent by the department from the employee's paycheck over the next four 
(4) pay periods. 

Page 24 Page 52

Item No. 4.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 25 

3. SCBA OPTICS REIMBURSEMENT 

Optical wear (lenses) suitable for insertion into SCBA mask are 
reimbursable by the City. Employees should use the claim reimbursement 
form and submit it within thirty (30) days using the chain of command. 

ARTICLE IX. MISCELLANEOUS 

1. JOB CLASSIFICATIONS 

A. The City recognizes that CFFDMME has a vital interest in the 
content of fire job specifications, including minimum qualifications 
and promotional patterns, for classifications represented by 
CFFDMME. 

B. The City agrees to notify CFFDMME anytime the City proposes to 
recruit and examine for, or to modify, fire job classifications 
represented by CFFDMME. The City agrees to meet and consult 
with CFFDMME over such proposed changes if CFFDMME so 
requests. 

C. On its own initiative, CFFDMME may at any time notify the City 
Human Resources Director that CFFDMME requests to meet and 
consult with the City over CFFDMME proposed modifications to the 
recruitment and examination procedure, and/or job specifications 
for fire classifications represented by CFFDMME. The City shall 
schedule a meet and consult session in response to such request. 

D. Nothing in this provision shall be construed as to require the City to 
divulge information or change procedures that in any way would 
compromise the integrity of the City's merit system. 

2. SHORT TERM SUSPENSION 

The parties agree that the members of this unit are not subject to short
term suspension as defined by the Personnel Rules and Regulations of 
the City of Folsom. 

FITNESS/ EVALUATION (WELLNESS} 

A. The City and CFFDMME agree to work cooperatively during the term of 
this MOU to implement and maintain a long term v1ellness fitness program for all 
uniformed personnel. The wellness fitness program shall be generally consistent 
with the guidelines recommended by the Third Edition of the Fire Service Joint 

Page 25 Page 53

Item No. 4.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 26 

Labor Manag~ment \'Vellness Fitness Initiative, and as approved by the Fire 
Chief. 

BA. The City and CFFDMME agree to support a comprehensive, mandatory 
annual medical examination for all uniformed employees represented by 
CFFDMME, as a component of the wellness fitnessfitness/wellness program. 

GB. The City agrees te-an established a wellness/fitnessfitness/wellness work 
out period for all CFFDMME employees during the normal work shift. 

4. LABOR/1\t'IJ\N/\GEMENT TEAM 

A The City and CFFDMME agree to establish a joint labor management 
team. The primary purpose of the labor management team is to identify problem 
areas 1Nithin the fire department, and to develop operational plans and policies 
which will assist in mitigating the problem area. 

B. The team will meet regularly and will consist of the Fire Chief or designee 
and a maximum of three (3) representatives of CFFDMME. The labor 
management team may also include representatives of other bargaining units 
within the department as determined appropriate by the Fire Chief or designee. 

5. SENIORITY FOR PURPOSES OF LAYOFF 

Seniority for purposes of layoff shall be defined by the date of the most 
recent appointment to the classification. Time served as a probationary 
employee in the class shall be included in determining seniority. 

Page 26 Page 54

Item No. 4.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 27 

ARTICLE X. SIGNATURE CLAUSE 

1. SIGNATURE CLAUSE 

The terms and conditions of this Memorandum of Understanding are executed 
this _ ____ day of __________ , ~2020, by the 
Employer-Employee representatives whose signatures appear below on behalf of 
their respective organizations. 

City of Folsom 

Elaine Andersen 
City Manager 

Jim Francis 
Human Resources Director 

Felipe Rodriguez 
Fire Chief 

Dennis Batchelder 

City Representative 

Kristine Haile 
City Representative 

Page 27 

CFFDMME 

Chad Wilson 
CFFDMME Representative 

Ken Cusano 
CFFDMME Representative 

Mark Piacentini 
CFFDMME Representative 

Chris Fletchall 

CFFDMME Representative 

Page 55

Item No. 4.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 28 

ATT CHMENTA 

.Fi re· id-Mana ement Sa lar Rane, 

1 .f. 1 1 ~ §. z ~ 

Fire Batta I ion Chief 

1L1L2020 $135,893 $139,290 $142,772 $146,342 S150,000 $153,750 $157,594 $161,534 

1L1L2021 $138,950 $142,424 $145,985 Sl49,634 $153,375 $157,210 $161,140 S165,168 

1w2022 $142,424 $145,985 $149,634 $153,375 $157,210 $161,140 $165.168 $169,298' 

Fire Division Chief 

1w2020 $157,594 $161,534 $165,572 $169,711 $173,954 $178,303 $182,760 

1L1L2021 $161,140 $165. 168 $169,297 $173,530 $177,868 $182,315 S186,873 

1L1L2022 $165,168 $169,297 $173,530 $177,868 $182,315 $186,813 $191,544 

Page 28 
Page 56

Item No. 4.



MEETING DATE: 

AGENDA SECTION: 

SUBJECT: 

FROM: 

Folsom City Council 
Staff Re ort 

2/25/2020 

Consent Calendar 

Resolution No. 10392 - A Resolution Rescinding Resolution No. 
10307 Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Contract with 
Allstar Fire Equipment and Bauer Compressors to Purchase Self-
Contained Breathing Apparatus and Related Equipment to 
Maintain Compliance with the Department of Transportation and 
National Fire Protection Association and Meet the Requirements 
of OSHA 29 CFR 1910. 
Fire Department 

RECOMMENDATION I CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

Approve Resolution No. 10392 - A Resolution Rescinding Resolution No. 10307 Authorizing 
the City Manager to Execute a Contract with Allstar Fire Equipment and Bauer Compressors 
to Purchase Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) and Related Equipment to Maintain 
Compliance with the Department of Transportation and National Fire Protection Association 
and Meet the Requirements of OSHA 29 CFR 1910. Staff determined to rescind Resolution 
No. 10307 when Resolution No. 10380 was approved by City Council on January 28, 2020. 

BACKGROUND/ ISSUE 

On July 9, 2019, the City Council approved Resolution 10307 which authorized the City 
Manager to execute a contract with Allstar Fire Equipment and Bauer Compressors to purchase 
self-contained breathing apparatus and related equipment to maintain compliance with the 
Department of Transportation and National Fire Protection Association and meet the 
requirements of OSHA CFR 1910. Purchase of SCBA and related equipment were not made 
in accordance to Resolution No. 10307 due to contractual changes from the manufacturer of 
the selected SCBA and related equipment. 

1 
Page 57

Item No. 5.



POLICY/ RULE 

Section 2.36.080, Award of Contracts of the Folsom Municipal Code states, in part, that 
contracts for supplies, equipment, services and construction with an estimated value of$62,014 
or greater shall be awarded by City Council. 

ANALYSIS 

The Fire Department was unsuccessful in entering into a cooperative purchasing agreement 
through the State of California, Department of General Services, Procurement Division 
Contract #1-17-42-04, as per Section 2B Local Government Agencies, therefore a public notice 
was provided pursuant to Folsom Municipal Code, Title 2, Chapter 2.36, Section 2.36.100, for 
vendors to provide sealed bids for the purchase of SCBA and related equipment. After 
receiving the bids and selecting the most responsive bidder, a staff report was written and 
submitted to the City Council on January 28, 2020. The City Council approved Resolution 
103 80 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Contract with Allstar Fire 
Equipment and Bauer Compressors to Purchase Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus and 
Related Equipment to Maintain Compliance with the Department of Transportation, National 
Fire Protection Association, and OSHA Requirements. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

There is no financial impact on the General Fund rescinding Resolution No. 10307. 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

This action by the City Council is exempt from environmental review pursuant to Section 
15061(b)(3) (Review for Exemption) of the California Environmental Quality Act. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Resolution No. 10392 - A Resolution Rescinding Resolution No. 10307 Authorizing 
the City Manager to Execute a Contract with Allstar Fire Equipment and Bauer 
Compressors to Purchase Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus and Related Equipment 
to Maintain Compliance with the Department of Transportation and National Fire 
Protection Association and Meet the Requirements of OSHA 29 CFR 1910. 

2. Resolution No. 10307 

3. Resolution No. 10380 

Submitted, 

2 
Page 58

Item No. 5.



Attachment 1 

Resolution No. 10392 - A Resolution Rescinding Resolution No. 10307 Authorizing the City 
Manager to Execute a Contract with Allstar Fire Equipment and Bauer Compressors to Purchase 
Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus and Related Equipment to Maintain Compliance with the 
Department of Transportation and National Fire Protection Association and Meet the 
Requirements of OSHA 29 CFR 1910. 

Page 59

Item No. 5.



RESOLUTION NO. 10392 

A RESOLUTION RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 10307 AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH ALLSTAR FIRE EQUIPMENT AND 

BAUER COMPRESSORS TO PURCHASE SELF-CONTAINED BREATHING 
APPARATUS AND RELATED EQUIPMENT TO MAINTAIN COMPLIANCE WITH 

THE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND NATIONAL FIRE PROTECTION 
ASSOCIATION AND MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OSHA 29 CFR 1910 

WHEREAS, on January 28, 2020, the City Council approved Resolution No. 10380, 
authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract with Allstar Fire Equipment and Bauer 
Compressors to purchase self-contained breathing apparatus and related equipment to maintain 
compliance with the Department of Transportation, National Fire Protection Association, and 
OSHA Requirements; and, 

WHEREAS, on July 9, 2019, the City Council approved Resolution No. 10307, 
authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract with Allstar Fire Equipment and Bauer 
Compressors to purchase self-contained breathing apparatus and related equipment to maintain 
compliance with the Department of Transportation and National Fire Protection Association and 
meet the requirements of OSHA 29 CFR 1910; and, 

WHEREAS, the existing self-contained breathing apparatus are experiencing regular 
mechanical problems, the manufacturer is unable to provide replacement parts and service support 
to maintain proper operability, and the cylinders have reached end-of-life hydrostatic testing 
certification; and, 

WHEREAS, the Fire Department has validated the need to replace existing self-contained 
breathing apparatus (SCBA's); and, 

WHEREAS, staff has reviewed various vendor products and determined that Scott Health 
and Safety will provide the best quality product for the best value; and, 

WHEREAS, a purchase agreement will be executed with Allstar Fire Equipment, Inc. for 
the purchase; and, 

WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 2019-20 budget included replacement SCBA's and related 
equipment in the amount of $628,000 and the entire amount is currently available; and, 

WHEREAS, staff complied with the provisions of Section 2.36.100 of the Folsom 
Municipal Code, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom 
hereby rescinds Resolution No. 10307 in its entirety. 

Resolution No. 10392 
Page 1 of 2 

Page 60

Item No. 5.



PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 25th day of February 2020, by the following roll-call 
vote: 

AYES: Council Member: 
NOES: Council Member: 
ABSTAIN: Council Member: 
ABSENT: Council Member: 

ATTEST: 

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK 

Resolution No. 10392 
Page 2 of2 

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR 

Page 61

Item No. 5.



Attachment 2 

Resolution No. 10307 

Page 62

Item No. 5.



RESOLUTION NO. 10307 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A 
CONTRACT WITH ALLSTAR FIRE EQUIPMENT AND BAUER COMPRESSORS TO 

PURCHASE SELF-CONTAINED BREATHING APPARATUS AND RELATED 
EQUIPMENT TO MAINTAIN COMPLIANCE WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION AND NATIONAL FIRE PROTECTION ASSOCIATION AND MEET 
THE REQUIREMENTS OF OSHA 29 CFR 1910 

WHEREAS, the existing self-contained breathing apparatus are experiencing regular 
mechanical problems, the manufacturer is unable to provide replacement parts and service support to 
maintain proper operability, and the cylinders have reached end-of-life hydrostatic testing 
certification; and 

WHEREAS, the Fire Department has validated the need to replace existing self-contained 
breathing apparatus (SCBA's); and 

WHEREAS, staff has reviewed various vendor products and determined that Scott Health 
and Safety will provide the best quality product for the best value; and 

WHEREAS, a cooperative purchasing agreement through the State of California, 
Department of General Services will be used for their purchase; and 

WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 2019-20 budget included replacement SCBA's and related 
equipment in the amount of $628,000 with the remaining $715.03 being absorbed in the FY 2019-20 
Fire Department budget and the entire amount is currently available; and 

WHEREAS, staff complied with the provisions of Section 2.36.170 of the l·olsom Muni ipal 
Code; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom that 
the City Manager is authorized to award a contract to Allstar Fire Equipment, Inc. in the amount of 
$610,153.77 for self-contained breathing apparatus and $18,561.26 to Bauer Compressors for vehicle 
#341083 (Air 35) upgrades. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 9th day of July 2019, by the following roll-call vote: 

AYES: Council Members: 
NOES: Council Members: 
ABSENT: Council Members: 
ABSTAIN: Council Members: 

ATTEST: 

Resolution No. 10307 
Page 1 of l 

Aquino, Kozlowski, Sheldon, Howell 
None 
Gaylord 
None 

Page 63

Item No. 5.



Attachment 3 

Resolution No. 10380 

Page 64

Item No. 5.



RESOLUTION NO. 10380 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT 
WITH ALLSTAR FIRE EQUIPMENT AND BAUER COMPRESSORS TO PURCHASE 

SELF-CONTAINED BREATHING APPARATUS AND RELATED EQUIPMENT TO 
MAINTAIN COMPLIANCE WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, 
NATIONAL FIRE PROTECTION ASSOCIATION, AND OSHA REQUIREMENTS 

WHEREAS, the existing self-contained breathing apparatus are experiencing regular 
mechanical problems, the manufacturer is unable to provide replacement parts and service support to 
maintain proper operability, and the cylinders have reached end-of-life hydrostatic testing 
certification; and 

WHEREAS, the Fire Department has validated the need to replace existing self-contained 
breathing apparatus (SCBA's); and 

WHEREAS, staff has reviewed various vendor products and determined that Scott Health 
and Safety will provide the best quality product for the best value; and 

WHEREAS, a purchase agreement will be executed with Allstar Fire Equipment, Inc. for the 
purchase; and 

WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 2019-20 budget included replacement SCBA's and related 
equipment in the amount of $628,000 and the entire amount is currently available; and 

WHEREAS, staff complied with the provisions of Section 2.36.100 of the Folsom Municipal 
Code. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom that 
the City Manager is authorized to award a contract to Allstar Fire Equipment, Inc. in the amount of 
$609,167.86 for self-contained breathing apparatus and $18,561.26 to Bauer Compressors for vehicle 
#341083 (Air 35) upgrades. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 28th day of January 2020, by the following roll-call vote: 

AYES: Council Member(s): 
NOES: Council Member(s): 
ABSENT: Council Member(s): 
ABSTAIN: Council Member(s): 

ATTEST: 

. 
C b,u :Q-~5,.l.·roC\,('\,-d.A-, 
hrista Fr;;;;~ CITY CLERK 

Resolution No. 10380 
Page I of 1 

Howell, Sheldon, Gaylord, Aquino 
None 
Kozlowski 
None 

0 

Page 65

Item No. 5.



 

 

 

 
This page is intentionally left blank. 

Page 66

Item No. 5.



i. lfl. ,.: •:_, \'f 
. ' . 

Folsom City Council 
Staff Re ort 

MEETING DATE: 2/25/2020 

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10393 -A Resolution Authorizing the City 
Manager to Execute Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement 
(Contract No. 173-21 19-028) with Black & Veatch Corporation 
for the Design Services for the Water Treatment Plant Actiflo-
Polymer Capacity Project, Hereinafter Referred to as the Water 
Treatment Plant Pre-Treatment System Improvement Project 

FROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department 

RECOMMENDATION I CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends that the City Council pass 
and adopt Resolution No. 10393 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute 
Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-21 19-028) with Black & Veatch 
Corporation for the Design Services for the Water Treatment Plant Actiflo-Polymer Capacity 
Project, hereinafter referred to as the Water Treatment Plant Pre-Treatment System 
Improvement Project. 

BACKGROUND/ ISSUE 

The Environmental and Water Resources Department identifies infrastructure rehabilitation 
and replacement projects through water and sewer master plans, ongoing condition assessment 
programs, and regulatory changes. Staff has completed an analysis of potential Water 
Treatment Plant (WTP) capacity and reliability projects. Through these efforts, City staff 
identified the Water Treatment Plant Pre-Treatment System Improvement Project as a priority 
project. 

Currently, the City's water treatment process consists of three pre-treatment facilities. There 
are two Actiflo trains that can treat 20 million gallons per day (MGD) each, and the Basin 5 
train that can treat 15 MGD. Together these provide a total capacity of 55 MGD of treated 

1 Page 67

Item No. 6.



water. If the WTP were required to produce at the rated design capacity of 50 MGD, all three 
pre-treatment sedimentation trains would need to remain online without any redundancy. If 
one of the three existing pre-treatment sedimentation systems were offline due to operation 
and maintenance or failure the WTP would only be able to produce between 35 and 40 MGD. 

On March 12, 2019, City Council approved Resolution No. 10246 authorizing the City 
Manager to execute an agreement with Black & Veatch Corporation for design services for the 
Water Treatment Plant Pre-Treatment System Improvement Project in the amount of $3 93,029. 
As the project progressed and after several field visits by Black & Veatch Corporation with 
City staff, additional improvements are needed within Basin No. 5 that were discovered and 
are listed below: 

• Hydraulic upgrades at the influent pipe to Basin No. 5. 
• Structural upgrades within the walls of Basin No. 5 due to the additional load 

from the proposed plate settlers 
• New Motorized Control Valve at the influent pipe to Basin No. 5 
• New Flow Meter at the influent pipe to Basin No. 5 

This resolution will authorize the City Manager to execute Amendment No. 1 to the agreement 
(Contract No. 173-21 19-028) with Black & Veatch Corporation for the design services for the 
Water Treatment Plant Pre-Treatment System Improvement Project. Amendment No. 1 is for 
$37,732 bringing the total contract amount, including Amendment No. 1 to $430,761. 

POLICY/ RULE 

In accordance with Chapter 2.36 of the Folsom Municipal Code, professional services 
costing $62,014 or greater shall be contracted for by the City Council. 

ANALYSIS 

Through Resolution No. 10246, City Council authorized the City Manager to execute an 
agreement with Black & Veatch Corporation for design services for the Water Treatment Plant 
Pretreatment System Improvement Project. This amendment provides additional funding for 
design services that were not anticipated under the original contract. These additional design 
services include: 

• Demolition and Construction Drawings detailing the upgrade of the Basin No.5 influent 
p1pmg 

• Civil/Mechanical and Electrical/Instrumentation and Control drawings detailing the 
addition and installation of the new control valve and flow meter 

• Technical specifications for the steel pipe, valves, actuators, flowmeter, and other 
required items 

• Coordination with equipment vendors 
• Development of work sequence and construction constraints due to the additional work 
• Structural analysis and preparation of structural modification plans for Basin No.5 

2 
Page 68

Item No. 6.



The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends that the City Council 
authorize the City Manager to execute Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-
21 19-028) with Black & Veatch Corporation for design services for the Water Treatment Plant 
Pre-Treatment System Improvement Project in the amount of $37,732. The new contract 
amount, including Amendment No. 1, will total $430,761. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

The Water Treatment Plant Capacity Upgrade (formerly Water Treatment Plant Actiflo
Polymer Capacity) Project was included in the FY 2019-20 Capital Improvement Plan with a 
project budget of $4,934,914. The project has since been renamed the Water Treatment Plant 
Pre-Treatment System Improvement Project. 

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends that Amendment No. 1 to 
the agreement ( ontract No. 173-21 19-028) for design services be awarded to Black & Veatch 
Corporation for an additional $37,732. There are sufficient funds budgeted and available in the 
Water Capital Fund (Fund 521) for this amendment. 

ENVIRONMENT AL REVIEW 

This project is a rehabilitation project of existing infrastructure, and therefore is categorically 
exempt from environmental review under the California Environmental Quality Act as noted 
in Title 14 - California Code of Regulations, Chapter 3 - Guidelines for Implementation of the 
California Environmental Quality Act, Article 19 - Categorical Exemptions, Section 15302 -
Replacement or Reconstruction. 

ATTACHMENTS 

Resolution No. 10393 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment 
No. 1 to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-21 19-028) with Black & Veatch Corporation for 
the Design Services for the Water Treatment Plant Actiflo-Polymer Capacity Project, 
Hereinafter Referred to as the Water Treatment Plant Pre-Treatment System Improvement 
Project. 

Submitted, 

~ .J1Jte, Director 
Environmental and Water Resources Department 

3 
Page 69

Item No. 6.



RESOLUTION NO. 10393 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THE AGREEMENT (CONTRACT 173-21 19-
028) WITH BLACK & VEATCH CORPORATION FOR THE DESIGN SERVICES FOR 

THE WATER TREATMENT PLANT ACTIFLO-POLYMER CAPACITY PROJECT, 
HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AS THE WATER TREATMENT PLANT 

PRE-TREATMENT SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

WHEREAS, the City identifies that the project is critical to ensuring the treatment of 
high quality water supply to be delivered to all residents; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom has identified this project as a priority to maintain the 
integrity and operation of the water treatment system; and 

WHEREAS, Black & Veatch Corporation, by reason of their past experience and 
abilities for performing these types of services, are qualified to perform the required consulting 
services for the project; and 

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are budgeted and available in the Water Capital Fund 
(Fund 521) in the amount of $37,732; and 

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney: 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom 
authorizes the City Manager to execute Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-
21 19-028) with Black & Veatch Corporation for the Design Services for the Water Treatment 
Plant Actiflo-Polymer Capacity Project, hereinafter referred to as the Water Treatment Plant Pre
Treatment System Improvement Project in the amount of $37,732 for a total not-to-exceed 
amount of $430,761. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 25 th day of February 2020, by the following roll-call 
vote: 

AYES: Council Member(s): 
NOES: Council Member(s): 
ABSENT: Council Member(s): 
ABSTAIN: Council Member(s): 

ATTEST: 

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK 

Resolution No. 10393 
Page 1 of 1 

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR 

Page 70

Item No. 6.



Folsom City Council 
Staff Re ort 

MEETING DATE: 2/25/2020 

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10394 - A Resolution Authorizing the City 
Manager to Amend Existing Contracts for Building Plan Check 
and Inspection Services with Shums Coda Associates, 4Leaf, 
Inc. , and Interwest Consulting Group to Increase the Aggregate 
Contract Amount and Appropriation of Funds (173-21 15-058, 
173-21 15-057, 173-21 15-064) 

FROM: Community Development Department 

RECOMMENDATION/ CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

Staff recommends that the City Council approve Resolution No. 10394 - A Resolution 
Authorizing the City Manager to Amend Existing Contracts for Building Plan Check and 
Inspection Services with Shums Coda Associates, 4Leaf, Inc., and Interwest Consulting Group 
to Increase the Aggregate Contract Amount and Appropriation of Funds (173-21 15-058, 173-
2115-057, 173-2115-064) 

BACKGROUND/ ISSUE 

All building plans are submitted to the Building Division of the Community Development 
Department for a building permit before construction can begin. Each plan submitted must be 
processed by building permit technicians and reviewed by the plan check staff for conformance 
with the building code and local ordinances before a building permit can be issued. Once the 
permit is issued, building inspectors perform inspections through out the construction process 
for conformance with the building code before a certificate of occupancy can be issued. 

During budget planning for Fiscal Year (FY) 2019-20, the Building Division staff anticipated 
the need for additional manpower and expertise to help maintain review periods under 
established timelines and to allow inspections to be conducted in a timely manner. Staff 
estimated a cost of approximately $425,000 (total aggregate amount for all consultants) to meet 

1 
Page 71

Item No. 7.



these additional service needs. The amount of$425,000 was approved and allocated in the FY 
2019-20 budget. 

Due to an increase in building permit activity, a longer recruitment for plan review staff and 
an unexpected vacancy in permit technician staff, the City staff has been using the approved 
consultants more than expected to maintain required inspection, plan review and processing 
turnaround schedules. This has resulted in the projected expenditure of more than was 
anticipated through this fiscal year. At this time, staff is recommending that an additional 
amount of $350,000 (total aggregate amount for all consultants) be added to the FY 2019-20 
budget in the Community Development Department, for a total not-to-exceed of $775,000 in 
the aggregate for Building Plan Check and Inspection services. 

POLICY/ RULE 

In accordance with Chapter 2.36 of the Folsom Municipal Code, contracts of $62,014 or 
greater shall be approved by the City Council. 

ANALYSIS 

The unpredictability of permit activity generates a variable workload, yet the demand to review 
building plans and conduct inspections quickly is paramount to support the building industry 
and to maintain the economic growth of the City. In the past, support from building plan check 
consultants has proved extremely successful in adhering to established review timelines. The 
use of consultants has also provided the department the flexibility needed due to the 
inconsistent workload. With approval of this resolution, the consultants will assist staff in 
providing building permit technician, building plan check and inspection services on an as
needed basis. Consultants will receive 55% of the City's Plan Check Fee for a full review and 
the City will retain 45% as well as the full Building Permit Fee. The Building Permit Fee is 
used primarily to cover inspection and permit processing costs. When feasible, a straight hourly 
rate will be utilized in lieu of a percentage-based fee for consulting services. 

Staff will maintain the majority ofreviews and inspections in-house but, when necessary, staff 
will allocate the work between the approved consultants based on workload, expertise and 
expenditure. The contract with each consultant will have a not-to-exceed time period of the 
2019-20 fiscal year. Total contract payments will be based on the amount of funds budgeted 
for the fiscal year. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

Contracted services for Building Plan Check and Inspection Services was included in the FY 
2019-20 Budget for $425,000. Through the first six months of this fiscal year, approximately 
$346,089 has been expended. The utilization of contracted services has increased due to an 
increase in building permit activity, a longer recruitment than expected for one position and 
the unexpected vacancy of another position. Both positions would have been providing staff 
services that had to be contracted for. The current budget will not be sufficient to provide the 

2 Page 72

Item No. 7.



additional services needed for the remainder of the FY 2019-20. The additional contract 
amendment of $350,000 will be partially funded from the current available budget in the 
Community Development Department ($175,000), and staff is requesting an additional 
appropriation in the amount of $175,000 for the remainder of the contract amendment. 

Building permit fees were budgeted in FY 2019-20 in the Community Development 
Department at $1.3 million, as of January revenues have exceeded the budget and it is 
projected the building permit fees will generate at least the additional $175,000 needed for 
the additional appropriation. 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

The project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to 
Section 15061 b (3) (General Rule Exemption) of the CEQA Guidelines. 

ATTACHMENTS 

Resolution No. 10394 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Amend Existing 
Contracts for Building Plan Check and Inspection Services with Shums Coda Associates, 
4Leaf, Inc., and Interwest Consulting Group to Increase the Aggregate Contract Amount and 
Appropriation of Funds (173-21 15-058, 173-21 15-057, 173-21 15-059, 173-21 15-064) 

3 
Page 73

Item No. 7.



RESOLUTION NO. 10394 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO AMEND 
EXISTING CONTRACTS FOR BUILDING PLAN CHECK AND INSPECTION 

SERVICES WITH SHUMS CODA ASSOCIATES, 4LEAF, INC., AND INTERWEST 
CONSULTING GROUP TO INCREASE THE AGGREGATE CONTRACT AMOUNT 

AND APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS (173-2115-058, 173-2115-0~7, 173-2115-064) 

WHEREAS, the Community Development Department, Building Division, has 
established the need for as-needed outside plan check and inspection services; and 

WHEREAS, funds have been appropriated for this purpose in the Fiscal Year 2019-20 
budget, however, an additional appropriation is required in the amount of $175,000: and 

WHEREAS, consultant firms are selected based on their professional qualifications, 
experience and cost; and 

WHEREAS, the three firms listed above have existing contracts with the City for 
performing this work; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Chapter 2.36 of the Folsom Municipal Code, contracts 
of $62,014 or greater shall be approved by the City Council. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom hereby 
authorizes the City Manager to amend existing contracts for building plan check and inspection 
services with Shums Coda Associates, 4Leaf, Inc., and Interwest Consulting Group, to increase 
the aggregate contract amount by $350,000 for a not to exceed amount of $775,000. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Finance Director is authorized to 
appropriate an additional $175,000 expense to the FY 2019-20 Budget in the General Fund 
(Fund O 10) in the Community Development Department for this amendment and to also 
appropriate an additional $175,000 to the General Fund in the Community Development 
Department in additional Building Permit fee revenue. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 25th day of February 2020, by the following roll.call 
vote: 

AYES: Council Member(s): 
NOES: Council Member(s): 
ABSENT: Council Member(s): 
ABSTAIN: Council Member(s): 

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK 

Page 74

Item No. 7.



' l·' >f_l LS ie_; ;\1 
l •t. '" • 'I a 

Folsom City Council 
Staff Report 

- - I- • - .- ~ ~-- ------- - --- f .-L '41 

MEETING DATE: 2/25/2020 

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10395 - A Resolution Authorizing the City 
Manager to Execute a Consultant Services Agreement with 
TJKM Transportation Consultants for the Local Road Safety 
Plan and Appropriation of Measure A Funds 

FROM: Public Works Department 

RECOMMENDATION I CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

Staff recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 10395 - A Resolution 
Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Consultant Services Agreement with TJKM 
Transportation Consultants for the Local Road Safety Plan and Appropriation of Measure A 
Funds. 

BACKGROUND/ ISSUE 

The City of Folsom has received a $72,000 grant from the California Department of 
Transportation (Caltrans) to fund the preparation of the City's Local Road Safety Plan (LRSP). 
An LRSP is a systemic, data-driven approach to identify the causes of fatal or severe injury 
traffic collisions and the appropriate counter-measures to address them. Local agencies will 
be required to have an approved LRSP in place in order to qualify for Highway Safety 
Improvement Program (HSIP) funding in future funding cycles following HSIP Cycle 10, 
which is anticipated in May 2020. 

The Public Works Department prepared and issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) to qualified 
traffic engineering consultants to assist in the preparation of the LRSP. The RFP was issued 
on January 22, 2020 and proposals were due to the City by February 12, 2020. The City 
received a total of three proposals; after evaluation by Public Works staff, it was determined 
that the proposal submitted by TJKM Transportation Consultants was the most responsive to 

1 Page 75

Item No. 8.



the RFP. If approved, staff will prepare a consultant services agreement in a form acceptable 
to the City Attorney and execute said agreement with the consultant. 

POLICY/ RULE 

Section 2.36.080, Award of Contracts of the Folsom Municipal Code states, in part, that contracts 
for supplies, equipment, services and construction with an estimated value in excess of the City 
Manager's Contract Limit of $62,014 shall be awarded by City Council. 

ANALYSIS 

None. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

The Caltrans LRSP grant is a reimbursable, $72,000 grant and requires a local match of $8,000. 
The total amount ($80,000) will be appropriated from Fund 276 (Measure A), with $72,000 to 
be reimbursed to that fund, leaving a net financial impact of $8,000 to Fund 276. Because this 
is a reimbursable grant and the funds must be expended prior to the receipt of the grant, staff 
is requesting an additional appropriation in the amount of $80,000 in the Measure A Fund 
(Fund 276). The grant proceeds will be used as additional revenue to off set the expense except 
for the local match of $8,000. 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

Not applicable. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Resolution No. 10395 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a 
Consultant Services Agreement with TJKM Transportation Consultants for the Local 
Road Safety Plan and Appropriation of Measure A Funds. 

Submitted, 0'""<- ,--
Director 

2 
Page 76

Item No. 8.



RESOLUTION NO. 10395 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A 
CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH TJKM TRANSPORTATION 

CONSULTANTS FOR THE LOCAL ROAD SAFETY PLAN AND APPROPRIATION 
OF MEASURE A FUNDS 

WHEREAS, the Public Works Department has received a grant from the State of 
California Department of Transportation to fund a Local Road Safety Plan (LRSP); and 

WHEREAS, in January 2020, staff issued a Request for Proposals seeking a qualified 
consultant to assist in the preparation of the LRSP; and 

WHEREAS, of the three proposals received in response to the RFP, the proposal 
submitted by TJKM Transportation Consultants was deemed by staff to be the most responsive; 
and 

WHEREAS, the total project budget of $80,000 includes a $72,000 reimbursement grant 
and an $8,000 local match, which staff proposes to fund from the Measure A Fund (Fund 276); 
and 

WHEREAS, staff requests an additional appropriation in the Measure A Fund (Fund 
276) in the amount of $80,000 for this agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney: 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom 
authorizes the City Manager to execute a consultant services agreement with TJKM 
Transportation Consultants for the Local Road Safety Plan; and, 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom hereby 
authorizes the appropriation of $80,000 from the Measure A Fund (Fund 276), and an additional 
appropriation to grant revenue of $72,000 in the Measure A Fund (Fund 276). 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 25th day of February 2020, by the following roll-call 
vote: 

AYES: Council Member(s): 
NOES: Council Member(s): 
ABSENT: Council Member(s): 
ABSTAIN: Council Member( s): 

Resolution No. I 0395 
Page I of2 

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR 

Page 77

Item No. 8.



ATTEST: 

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK 

Resolution No. 10395 
Page 2 of2 

Page 78

Item No. 8.



MEETING DATE: 

AGENDA SECTION: 

SUBJECT: 

FROM: 

Folsom City Council 
Staff Re ort 

2/19/2020 

Old Business 

Budget Overview and Forecast for FY 2020-21 

Finance Department 

Staff will provide an overview of the upcoming Fiscal Year 2021 budget. Council Members 
will be able to provide staff with additional direction and comments for the Fiscal Year 2021 
budget, to be presented at a later date. 

Submitted, 

1 Page 79

Item No. 9.


	Top
	1. Presentation by Folsom High School Students Regarding the Computer Science Pathway Program New Drone Unit
	Item 1 - Presentation by Folsom High School Students Regarding the Computer Science Pathway Program New Drone Unit

	2. Approval of the February 11, 2020 Special/Regular Meeting Minutes
	Item 2 - Approval of the February 11, 2020 Special/Regular Meeting Minutes

	3. Ordinance No. 1300 - An Uncodified Ordinance Adopting Prima Facie Speed Limits on Greenback Lane, Prairie City Road and Riley Street (Second Reading and Adoption)
	Item 3 - Ordinance No. 1300 - An Uncodified Ordinance Adopting Prima Facie Speed Limits on Greenback Lane, Prairie City Road and Riley Street (Second Reading and Adoption)

	4. Resolution No. 10391 - A Resolution Authorizing Adoption of a Memorandum of Understanding Between the City of Folsom and the City of Folsom Fire Department Middle Management Employees (CFFDMME) for the Period of January 1, 2020 Through December 31, 2022
	Item 4 - Resolution No. 10391 - A Resolution Authorizing Adoption of a Memorandum of Understanding Between the City of Folsom and the City of Folsom Fire Department Middle Management Employees (CFFDMME) for the Period of January 1, 2020 Through December 31, 2022

	5. Resolution No. 10392 - A Resolution Rescinding Resolution No. 10307 Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Contract with Allstar Fire Equipment and Bauer Compressors to Purchase Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus and Related Equipment to Maintain Compliance with the Department of Transportation and National Fire Protection Association and Meet the Requirements of OSHA 29 CFR 1910
	Item 5 - Resolution No. 10392 - A Resolution Rescinding Resolution No. 10307 Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Contract with Allstar Fire Equipment and Bauer Compressors to Purchase Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus and Related Equipment to Maintain Compliance with the Department of Transportation and National Fire Protection Association and Meet the Requirements of OSHA 29 CFR 1910

	6. Resolution No. 10393 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-21 19-028) with Black & Veatch Corporation for the Design Services for the Water Treatment Plant Actiflo-Polymer Capacity Project, Hereinafter Referred to as the Water Treatment Plant Pre-Treatment System Improvement Project
	Item 6 - Resolution No. 10393 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-21 19-028) with Black & Veatch Corporation for the Design Services for the Water Treatment Plant Actiflo-Polymer Capacity Project, Hereinafter Referred to as the Water Treatment Plant Pre-Treatment System Improvement Project

	7. Resolution No. 10394 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Amend Existing Contracts for Building Plan Check and Inspection Services with Shums Coda Associates, 4Leaf Inc., and Interwest Consulting Group to Increase the Aggregate Contract Amount and Appropriation of Funds (173-21 15-058, 173-21 15-057, 173-21 15-064)
	Item 7 - Resolution No. 10394 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Amend Existing Contracts for Building Plan Check and Inspection Services with Shums Coda Associates, 4Leaf Inc., and Interwest Consulting Group to Increase the Aggregate Contract Amount and Appropriation of Funds (173-21 15-058, 173-21 15-057, 173-21 15-064)

	8. Resolution No. 10395 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Consultant Services Agreement with TJKM Transportation Consultants for the Local Road Safety Plan and Appropriation of Measure A Funds
	Item 8 - Resolution No. 10395 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Consultant Services Agreement with TJKM Transportation Consultants for the Local Road Safety Plan and Appropriation of Measure A Funds

	9. Budget Overview and Forecast for FY 2020-21
	Item 9 - Budget Overview and Forecast for FY 2020-21

	Bottom

